

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

HEARING ON DRAFT WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT
MODIFICATION APPLICATION

JANUARY 11, 2007

ORIGINAL

This Public Hearing on A Draft Water Discharge Permit Modification Application for Gordon's Disposal, LLC, Gordon Doerle Type III Construction & Demolition Debris Landfill, Iberia and St. Martin Parishes, Louisiana, was taken before Brenda M. Landry, Certified Court Reporter, at Iberia Parish Courthouse, Courtroom A, 300 Iberia Street, New Iberia, Louisiana, the 11th day of January, 2007, beginning at 6:00 p.m.

DEQ - OES
2007 FEB - 5 AM 9:42

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

BY MR. GLORIOSO:

Good evening. Let the record reflect that the time 6:00 p.m.

My name is Jay Glorioso. I am employed with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality. I will be serving as the hearing officer this evening, Thursday, January 11, 2007.

This hearing is scheduled to accept public comments concerning the draft water discharge permit modification for Gordon's Disposal, LLC, for the Gordon Doerle Type III Construction & Demolition Debris, Landfill, New Iberia, Iberia, and St. Martin Parishes, Louisiana, Agency Interest Number 30245, Permit Number LA0097888 and Activity Tracking Number PER20060002. The site is located at 614 Coteau Road, New Iberia, Iberia and St. Martin Parishes.

Gordon's Construction & Landfill proposes to modify the permit to include outfall 003 for the discharge of treated storm water, outfall 004 for non-contact storm water, and outfall 104 for vehicle and equipment wash water. Outfall 001 will be removed from this permit. In accordance with Louisiana Administrative

1 Code 33:3105.B.2, only those permit limitations
2 and conditions pertaining to the draft
3 modification are open to public comment.

4 This hearing is not being conducted in a
5 question and answer format. Please remember
6 that the purpose of this public hearing is for
7 DEQ to receive your comments concerning the
8 draft or discharge permit modification.

9 This hearing is to provide all individuals
10 a change to be heard, regardless of their
11 position, on the draft water discharge permit
12 modification.

13 Courteous behavior is expected of everyone
14 at all times. You may speak in support of the
15 permit, in opposition to the permit, or simply
16 to provide additional information. All
17 interested parties will be given a reasonable
18 opportunity to comment, unless your testimony
19 is not related to the purpose of the hearing.
20 Your comments will be evaluated and addressed
21 in the department's written response.

22 A public notice advertising this public
23 hearing and request for public comment on the
24 draft water discharge permit modification was
25 published in The Advocate of Baton Rouge, The

1 Teche News of St. Martinville on December 6,
2 2006, and the Daily Iberian of New Iberia,
3 Louisiana on December 7, 2006.

4 A copy of the draft water discharge permit
5 modification is available for inspection and
6 review at the DEQ Public Records Center, Room
7 127, 602 North 5th Street, Baton Rouge,
8 Louisiana, Viewing hours are 8:00 a.m. to 4:30
9 p.m., Monday through Friday's, except holidays.

10 The available information can also be
11 accessed electronically on the Electronic
12 Document Management System (EDMS) on the DEQ
13 public website at www.deq.louisiana.gov.

14 Additional copies may be reviewed at the
15 Iberia Parish Library Headquarters, 445 East
16 Main Street, New Iberia, Iberia Parish,
17 Louisiana, and the St. Martin Parish Library,
18 Headquarters, 201 Porter Street, St.
19 Martinville, Louisiana.

20 In addition, copies of the public notice
21 were mailed to individuals who have requested
22 to be placed on the mailing list maintained by
23 the Office of Environmental Services on
24 December 4, 2006.

25 In accordance with Louisiana Administrative

1 Code, Title 33, 3113.B.1, comments received by
2 12:30 p.m., Tuesday, January 16, 2007, will be
3 considered prior to a final decision. All
4 comments received by 12:30 p.m., January 16,
5 2007, shall be retained by the Department and
6 considered in determining whether to issue or
7 deny the draft water discharge permit
8 modification.

9 Written comments on this draft water
10 discharge permit modification may be submitted
11 to Miss Soumaya Ghosn, LDEQ-Office of
12 Environmental Assistance, Environmental
13 Assistance Division, Post Office Box 4313,
14 Baton Rouge, Louisiana,, 70821-4313.

15 Under Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 30,
16 Section 2017, as provided by the Legislature in
17 the 2004 session, the LDEQ is required to
18 follow the following order with the provision
19 that the providing officer, I'm sorry, the
20 presiding officer may give preference to a
21 public official to speak at any time during the
22 hearing. However, any time limit set for
23 citizen testimony shall apply to public
24 officials.

25 The Department must provide up to 30

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

minutes to the permit applicant for an introductory presentation. Thereafter, preference for speaking up to one hour is given as follows:

For the first hour to those citizens who live within a two mile radius of the location of the facility;

For the second hour, to those citizens who work within a two mile radius of the location of the facility; and

For the third hour, to those citizens who live within the parish of the location of the facility.

Thereafter, each hour of the hearing shall alternate between those who are in support of the draft water discharge permit modification and those who are opposed. The order of tonight's hearing will be based on information provided by the speaker on the registration form. Anyone who registered to speak, but did not provide the necessary information, will be given the opportunity to speak; however, they will be called last in the order of registration.

This hearing is being transcribed;

1 therefore, I will ask that each speaker begin
2 by stating for the record their name, address,
3 and any organization he or she may represent.

4 At this time, I would like to ask the
5 permit applicant's representative to come
6 forward and make their introductory
7 presentation.

8 BY MS. RYTUS:

9 My name is Yolanda Rytus. I'm with
10 Providence Engineering. I'm here tonight
11 representing Gordon's Disposal, LLC. My
12 address is 1201 Main Street, Baton Rouge,
13 Louisiana, 70802.

14 Basically, I'll start off by giving a
15 general introduction or facility background.

16 Gordon's Disposal, LLC, operates a Type III
17 Construction & Demolition Landfill and
18 Separation facility.

19 The facility is located at 614 Coteau Road,
20 New Iberia, Louisiana, in Iberia Parish and St.
21 Martin Parish.

22 Access to the site is via Louisiana Highway
23 88.

24 The facility expansion or the additional
25 facility operations that are included in the

1 proposed permit modifications includes a
2 maintenance shop and an oxidation pond. Also
3 as part of the facility expansion, Gordon's
4 Disposal has constructed a pick-up station at a
5 location south of the existing facility.

6 A modification application was submitted to
7 the LDEQ in April of 2006 to modify the
8 existing LPDES Permit, the water discharge
9 permit for the facility.

10 The modification was submitted to address
11 the facility expansion that I just noted
12 previously, the maintenance shop and an
13 oxidation pond, as well as a pick-up station.

14 The current permit has an effective date of
15 August 1st, 2004, and it expires on July 31st,
16 2009. This current permit authorizes the
17 discharge of the storm water runoff from the
18 outfall area or the disposal area through
19 outfall 001 and treated sanitary waste water
20 through outfall 002.

21 The primary function of the landfill is to
22 manage construction and demolition debris with
23 waste and yard waste in an environmentally safe
24 manner. The landfill maintains a solid waste
25 permit to dispose of construction and

1 demolition debris with waste and yard trash.

2 Approximately 31 acres was developed for

3 the facility expansion. The expansion is

4 located adjacent to and south of the existing C

5 & D Landfill. Again, the expansion of the

6 facility includes a maintenance shop, an

7 oxidation pond and a pick-up station.

8 The oxidation pond or the existing

9 oxidation pond, the pond that was originally

10 permitted as part of the original C & D

11 Landfill will no longer be used as an oxidation

12 pond, but will become additional capacity for

13 construction and demolition debris.

14 The discharges that outfall 001 contain

15 will then be routed to the new pond which is

16 the proposed outfall 003 that's included in the

17 permit application, permit modification

18 application.

19 The pick-up station is used to manage

20 municipal waste that is not permitted for

21 disposal in a construction and demolition

22 landfill.

23 The incoming stream at the pick-up station

24 is off-loaded from small, local trucks to

25 larger trucks for transportation to an off-

1 sited permitted landfill for proper disposal.

2 The storm water falling on the pick-up
3 station, the overnight parking area for
4 trailers and the wood way storage area will be
5 routed to the new oxidation pond, again
6 proposed outfall 003.

7 The maintenance shop contains a bay for
8 washing vehicles and equipment. This wash water
9 from the washing of the vehicle and equipment
10 will be discharged through a proposed outfall,
11 a proposed internal outfall which is outfall
12 104.

13 Storm water runoff from the maintenance
14 shop area will be disposed through proposed
15 outfall 004, again a new proposed outfall, to
16 be included in the proposed in the water
17 discharge permit.

18 In conjunction with the water discharge
19 permit the facility maintains a storm water
20 pollution plan. The permit requires that the
21 plan be revised accordingly whenever there is a
22 change in design, construction, operation or
23 maintenance at the facility that has
24 significant effect on the discharge or
25 potential for discharge of pollutants from the

1 facility.

2 What I'd like to do now is again just give
3 a brief description of the outfalls to give you
4 an idea of the changes that will be implemented
5 through the permit modification.

6 As I stated, at this time all of the storm
7 water from the active fill area is being routed
8 to the newly constructed oxidation pond. The
9 affluence from this pond will be discharged
10 through outfall 003 once it is permitted, which
11 is essentially the same as that waste water
12 that is currently permitted through outfall
13 001.

14 What we're proposing to do is move the
15 outfall location, thus deleting outfall 001 as
16 an LPDS outfall.

17 In summary, the following is a description
18 of the outfalls that the facility is requesting
19 to be permitted once all construction
20 activities are complete.

21 Outfall 001, this is the outfall from the
22 old oxidation pond, the permit modification
23 application proposes to delete this outfall.

24 Outfall 002, again, is an existing outfall
25 for treated sanitary waste water. That will

1 remain unchanged.

2 Outfall 003 is a proposed outfall.
3 Essentially what we're doing is changing an
4 outfall location. We're deleting outfall 001
5 and creating a new outfall, 003.

6 This outfall is for storm water runoff from
7 the active fill area and storm water that falls
8 on the pick-up station, overnight parking area
9 for the trailers and the wood way storage area.

10 Outfall 004, again, is a proposed outfall
11 for the discharge of storm water runoff from
12 the maintenance shop and office area.

13 Internal outfall 104 is another proposed
14 outfall which will have a discharge of vehicle
15 and equipment wash water through final outfall
16 1 -- 004, excuse me.

17 In closing, I'd like to stress the fact
18 that the same affluent limitations and monitor
19 requirements that have been applied to the
20 existing pond, outfall 001, are included in the
21 draft permit for the new oxidation pond,
22 proposed outfall 003.

23 The waste water that will be treated by the
24 new pond are essentially the same as the waste
25 water currently treated by the existing

1 oxidation pond, 001.

2 Thank you.

3 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

4 Thank you.

5 I will now begin by allowing all persons
6 who have signed up to present their comments.
7 Anyone who needs more than five minutes will be
8 allowed to finish his or her comments after all
9 the speakers have had the opportunity to speak.

10 We have one parish official that's signed
11 up to speak and I'm going to give him
12 preference to come up and speak first, is Mr.
13 Ray Fremin. Did I get that right?

14 What's your name back there, sir?

15 BY THE COURT REPORTER:

16 What's your name, sir?

17 BY MR. FREMIN:

18 My name is Ray Fremin.

19 In opposition to the placement of the
20 landfill, I'm going to speak to tonight.
21 Because historically the operator has had
22 numerous infractions in the standing -- the
23 standing situation that he has now. And those
24 infractions, I think, indicates his potential
25 to comply or not comply with current law.

1 I think that we have a good historical. I
2 think if you added up all the infractions that
3 he has, well over half of the time spent out
4 there would have been spent under a non-
5 compliant situation.

6 It bothers me that nothing really has ever
7 been done about that. Continued infractions
8 seem to be allowed, on what basis I don't know,
9 because there never seems to be an increasing
10 penalty or a penalty that at some point relates
11 to a shutdown.

12 I'm very, very concerned that that's the
13 way that its been handled in the past and I
14 express concern that because that's the
15 history, that that's the way it'll be handled
16 in the future. And I don't see that that's a
17 proper way to regulate. If it's going to be
18 regulated, I'm asking DEQ that it be regulated
19 properly, and that if someone is not going to
20 follow the law, that there be some real penalty
21 connected to that.

22 I also want to voice concern about his
23 close proximity to our airport and the problems
24 that it could cause with our airport.

25 Previous to now, the location has been

1 located in St. Martin Parish, which for some --
2 for that reason has not taken into account, I
3 don't believe its taken into account its
4 proximity to the airport. Now that it's in
5 Iberia Parish, I think that should be taken
6 into account, because if we lose that airport
7 because of anyone in that vicinity, we lose the
8 airport and a viable part of our parish. And
9 I'm not interested in putting that in jeopardy.

10 Thank y'all for your time.

11 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

12 Thank you.

13 I think we have another official here, sir,
14 I think it's Mr. Hulin.

15 BY MR. HULIN:

16 Hulin.

17 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

18 Hulin, I'm sorry. I apologize for mis-
19 pronouncing names tonight.

20 BY MR. HULIN:

21 Good evening. My name is Naray Hulin. I
22 reside at 6211 Fremin Road and I represent the
23 district in which Gordon's Construction &
24 Landfill resides in.

25 I'd like to begin this evening, you know,

1 talking about the discharge permit modification
2 which we're all here for.

3 Some people have tended to downplay the
4 importance of the discharge permit and, you
5 know, if that discharge permit is denied, then
6 basically Gordon's Construction ceases to
7 function. So I think it's very important that
8 people say what's on their minds tonight.

9 Secondly, I find it ironic that when you
10 ask DEQ officials what they call that type of
11 facility, pick-up station, transfer station, or
12 whatever, they cannot give us a name for it.
13 But yet, they say they don't permit it.

14 Now this facility exposes garbage that's
15 exposed to the weather 24 hours a day. Now
16 they -- DEQ has denied Iberia Parish Government
17 a permit for a Bedminster Facility, which once
18 this garbage is dumped inside this building on
19 concrete slabs, it never sees the light of day
20 again.

21 So I find it ironic that they would permit
22 that type of facility and not permit Gordon
23 Doerle's Landfill, pick-up station/transfer
24 station.

25 Presently, Gordon has two lawsuits on him,

1 one from Iberia Parish Government which is
2 still in the court; and two, people opposing
3 waste also has a lawsuit on him that's in the
4 court system now. So there's two lawsuits that
5 are still pending and I find it puzzling that
6 DEQ would still want to permit that type of
7 facility. Okay. And most of this is just
8 informational. Only one question is going to
9 come at the end.

10 But Gordon presently has no construction
11 debris landfill permit in St. Martin Parish.
12 Secondly, he is not in compliance with St.
13 Martin Parish zoning laws as it pertains to
14 construction debris landfill. And thirdly,
15 Iberia Parish Government has denied him a
16 permit for the operation of his pick-
17 up/transfer station.

18 Now Ray Fremin just touched on that. You
19 know, our regulations pertain to that type of
20 facility requires this to be one mile from any
21 house, apartment, business, school, that type
22 of deal. Well, he's not in compliance with
23 that and although that is important, what's
24 more important, as Ray touched on, is the fact
25 that it's within 3,200 feet of an active

1 runway.

2 Now my question to DEQ is who -- if an
3 accident should happen, bird strike, whatever,
4 who is going to be responsible for that? It's
5 not going to be Iberia Parish Government
6 because we denied him a permit, it's still in
7 the courts with it. It's not going to be FAA
8 because the FAA has adamantly opposed that
9 facility in letters to your agency, okay.
10 They're not going to sue the airport because
11 the airport has adamantly opposed Gordon's
12 Landfill pick-up/transfer station. So who are
13 they going to sue? There's only one let. But
14 I look forward to hearing their response.

15 Thanks.

16 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

17 Thank you, sir.

18 Are there any other public officials
19 present tonight?

20 (NONE NOTED)

21 The first to speak now will be those
22 citizens who live within a two mile radius of
23 the facility. Let's see. Rory, and I can't
24 make out the last name. It starts with an "F".

25 Okay. I'd like to note for the record that

1 Mr. Fremin doesn't want to speak. He has
2 signed up.

3 Fred Wesley.

4 BY MR. WESLEY:

5 (Inaudible).

6 BY THE COURT REPORTER:

7 I can't hear him.

8 BY MR. WESLEY:

9 My name is Fred Wesley. I'm the Chairman
10 of the Acadiana Regional Airport, and I would
11 like to defer my comments and let my director
12 come back and give y'all a synopsis of how we
13 feel about this transfer station or whatever.

14 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

15 Thank you.

16 Mathilda Nelson.

17 BY MS. NELSON:

18 Yes.

19 This is Mathilda Nelson, 5718 Fremin Road,
20 Lot 1.

21 Thank you. Just wondering why DEQ is not
22 holding Gordon's Construction & Landfill
23 accountable.

24 DEQ had some responses to some comments and
25 they had said Gordon's Construction & Landfill

1 needs to renew their expired permit in the St.
2 Martinville Parish, just like what Naray had
3 said. August of 2004 is when it expired. And
4 today's date is January, 2007. Nothing has
5 happened.

6 Also, Gordon's Construction & Landfill
7 needs to go to St. Martinville Parish and
8 change from the A-2 Agricultural Zoning to an
9 I-3 zoning, commercial. We're waiting for
10 that.

11 You know our neighborhood, we can't handle
12 anymore water. Everything drains down to the
13 coulee's and the land just gets full and
14 spills.

15 Why is a commercial enterprise trying to
16 discharge garbage sludge water from the pick-up
17 station, or transfer station, cause no one
18 knows what the definition is now, that the DEQ
19 is not monitoring into his oxidation pond and
20 then into the neighborhood coulee which can't
21 hold anymore water. All the neighbors property
22 run-off water goes into this coulee. It starts
23 to spill over onto the land.

24 You know, we used to go fishing in our pond
25 which is maybe 20 feet away from the coulee and

1 that's where all the discharge is. I've got
2 five kids. There's absolutely no way I let
3 them go with their friends or family members
4 into that back area for the pond, which is full
5 of beautiful fish to eat, not even to fish,
6 because I don't even want them to be tempted to
7 do that.

8 Finally, I read this article that we just
9 had yesterday. There was a similar article
10 last year and someone, a representative had
11 stated not one piece of paper falls on the
12 ground. And of course you see these huge 40
13 foot polls, about eight of them, this is just
14 the front part, that supports all this hundreds
15 of feet of netting to catch flying garbage and
16 debris, and also men that are hired on four
17 wheelers to pick up all the flying garbage that
18 is around the perimeter of the property.

19 I really am questioning anything that's is
20 said before this discharge permit, because when
21 people say something and when things have to be
22 done like pick up trash and litter, and we're
23 told that no trash is even falling. I really
24 wonder.

25 Thank you.

1 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

2 Thank you, ma'am.

3 Jessica Alleman, is that right?

4 Note for the record she has declined to
5 speak, Jessica Alleman.

6 Michael Viator.

7 BY MR. VIATOR:

8 Good evening.

9 My name is Mike Viator, H. Michael Viator.
10 I live at 3819 Estis Road and I appreciate this
11 opportunity to speak.

12 Today, my young daughter went to school and
13 she had show and tell today. And she brought a
14 picture of her grandfather. And it was some
15 ceremony that went on at the Iberia Parish
16 Airport Authority for some promotion of some
17 project that they had there. And, you know, I
18 had been contemplating this hearing tonight and
19 thinking about what needed to be talked about
20 and all and decided probably I wouldn't speak.
21 But she spurred me to address DEQ tonight and
22 ask that this permit be denied.

23 My father spent many, many years helping
24 promote this airport facility. Many of my
25 family members gave up property, gave up land,

1 so this Navy base could be situated there.
2 Involuntarily probably, but it happened. And
3 my father spent many years working with Iberia
4 Parish Government to build and promote this
5 facility. We have absolutely one of the finest
6 runways in South Louisiana. We have all sorts
7 of potential growth, prosperity, through this
8 airport. And to think we would allow,
9 continually, a facility at the end of the
10 runway that is so contrary to everything that
11 the airport needs and everything that it takes
12 for it to prosper.

13 Besides that, the residents in the area are
14 not being treated fairly when it comes to the
15 laws, the stipulations, the guidelines set down
16 for facilities.

17 Now I just want to talk a little bit about
18 relationships. You know, if I had a
19 relationship with you, or with anyone, and I
20 came along and I slapped you across the face.
21 And, you know, I hit you pretty hard. And, you
22 know, in a few minutes I told you look, I'm
23 sorry about that. I shouldn't have done that.

24 Then I come along the next time I see you,
25 I kick you in the shin. And I said, you know,

1 I shouldn't have done that. I'm sorry, I won't
 2 do that again.

3 The next time I see you, I punched you
 4 square in the stomach, fold you over. I say
 5 well, you know, don't think anything of it.
 6 I'm really sorry I did that. It wouldn't take
 7 long until you were very, very leery of me.
 8 When you see me coming, you'd either poise to
 9 run or poise to fight.

10 I think in this case, the operator of this
 11 landfill has not maintained a good relationship
 12 with this parish. He has repeatedly,
 13 repeatedly been fined over and over and over
 14 and it's the same thing over and over and over.
 15 We have more and more violations.

16 If we want to maintain a good relationship
 17 with a person, the same is valid for a good
 18 relationship between business, citizens and
 19 parish.

20 I'm speaking as a citizen tonight concerned
 21 about the citizens that live in that area,
 22 about the future of the airport. So my
 23 question to myself is, should this permit be
 24 given, should it be given? The truth of it is,
 25 the pond is already being used. There's

1 already waste water in that pond, in that front
2 area, and its not been permitted. This is a
3 hearing for the permit. It makes me wonder
4 sometimes just what's going on.

5 When we talk about the relationship between
6 the Parish Council and parish citizens and
7 businesses and airports and this sort of thing.
8 We live by rules and regulations. We live by
9 laws. And it seems as though those laws are
10 not being lived by, they're not being followed.

11 You know, other countries what they do is
12 they just go to war. And even before we had
13 laws, we'd kill one another to settle the score
14 to decide who gets the way of operating. But
15 today we have laws. And I'm asking that those
16 laws be followed.

17 Happy New Year! Happy New Year! It's
18 already 2007 and there's already violations,
19 complaints, in the landfill. Water being
20 discharged about a pond that is not even
21 permitted yet.

22 So I'm asking DEQ to do the right thing.
23 I'm asking DEQ not only to deny this permit,
24 but to protect our airport and our citizens in
25 this area. You are government officials. That

1 means you work for us. And I respectfully ask
2 you to deny the permit.

3 Thank you.

4 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

5 Thank you, sir.

6 I think that's everybody that's signed up
7 that lives within a two mile radius of the
8 facility.

9 Next to speak will be those who work within
10 a two mile radius of the facility and I have
11 Mr. Robert Mouton.

12 BY MR. MOUTON:

13 Thank you. My name is Robert Mouton, as
14 you well stated, sir. And I do work within two
15 miles of the subject facility seeking this
16 permit.

17 My comments are going to be brief.

18 Number one, on behalf of the Airport
19 Authority who manages and directs the growth
20 and maintenance of the airport, Acadiana
21 Regional Airport, I concur with all previous
22 comments except one, the certain elements of
23 Mrs. Yolanda Rytus statement.

24 Number two, was provided a map, number
25 2007701002 and it seems as though it's produced

1 by the LDEQ itself.

2 The points about this map that I want to
3 make is number one, it's a gross
4 misrepresentation of Acadiana Regional
5 Airport's property because the property
6 boundaries are not shown.

7 Number two, only one runway is shown. It's
8 improperly scaled, it's improperly positioned.
9 Yet, all the streets and roads and other
10 natural features on this map, I bet you are to
11 the gnats wing.

12 You ought to be ashamed of yourselves for
13 producing this garbage.

14 Number three, that map clearly distorts the
15 relationship of the subject facility to the air
16 field.

17 Given that, I'm going to request that three
18 documents be made a part of your record. I'll
19 call their names out and I'll give them to you
20 after I speak from them.

21 Number one is the air traffic count for the
22 month of December, 2006. But that document
23 also contains the statistics for 2004, 2005 as
24 well as 2006. I'm going to give you the total
25 operational count of 2004, 68,826 operations;

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

2005, 94,252; 2006, 128,148.

We have seen in those years documented the rotor craft activity go from 70% to almost 85%.

The object of that is to point out that we have, not only a total increase in operational count, but the preponderance is, and probably will continue, to be helicopters. And probably, unless you permit the operation to be granted a permit for this public hearing tonight, and continue to neglect to do your duties in rejecting the other applications that are just pending as you close your eyes to his operation.

The second document I'm going to give you is the wildlife aircraft site safety for Acadiana Regional Airport. Regrettably, only recently have bird sights begun to be recorded for our airport. This one documents incidents based from 10-5-2005 through -- going back in time, excuse me, 2-18-94 and it clearly shows that there's an increase in bird strike activity. And I quickly add that this represents the average reported bird strikes of approximately 80% go reported. So this is only 20% of the actual bird strikes, if you use that

1 average. And that average is found in a
2 document which I'm sure you've not reviewed,
3 otherwise you might have taken action on this
4 operation before now. The document was
5 produced by two federal agencies, APIS, US
6 Department of Agriculture, Animal and Plant
7 Health Inspection Services and Wildlife
8 Services and the FAA. It's titled "Wildlife
9 Strikes and Civil Aircraft in the United
10 States." Only civil aircraft. It doesn't
11 include military. So if the statistics all
12 were combined would be much greater.

13 I go back to my chart of operations at the
14 airport and point out that we have significant
15 military activity. We have significant
16 government activity from NASA, United State
17 Army, United States Navy, United States Air
18 Force, Homeland Security aka Coast Guard, and
19 we have other black outs operating both fixed
20 wing and rotor craft.

21 So keep that in mind when you review this
22 document. And you can get it on line just as
23 we did. I'm going to give you the cover sheet
24 and call your attention to several significant
25 parts of it, which are also attached, "Bird

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Strikes to Civil Helicopters in the United States from 1990 to 2005."

Also, "Reported Phase of Flight and Damage at time of Bird Strikes to Civil Helicopters," for this period 1990 to 2005.

The number of reported bird strikes to civil helicopters at height in feet above the ground level, 1990 to 2005.

It's good to note that most of this bird strike activity occurs from 500 feet down to zero.

The next table, number of reported strikes and strikes with damage to civil helicopters for the four most commonly struck bird groups.

So when you look at this chart, it doesn't include all the bird strikes.

BY MR. GLORIOSO:

Mr. Viator.

BY MR. VIATOR:

Yeah, I've got five minutes.

BY MR. GLORIOSO:

You've been running on about 10 minutes.

BY MR. VIATOR:

Okay. The last one, then I'll leave.

Civil helicopter components reported as

1 being struck and damaged by birds, not
2 helicopters, excuse me, I'm sorry, damaged by
3 birds in the USA, 1990 to 2005.

4 In closing, the Airport Authority thanks
5 you for an opportunity to present its case once
6 more.

7 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

8 Mr. Patrick Grace.

9 BY MR. GRACE:

10 Good evening. My name is Patrick Grace. I
11 reside at 102 Indest Street, New Iberia, 70563.

12 I am the Director of Flight Operations for
13 Air Logistics Helicopters. We are the largest
14 tenant on Acadiana Regional Airport.

15 First of all, I'd like to start with we
16 oppose the permit and we encourage LADEQ to not
17 grant said permit.

18 Two things I'd like to speak to you about
19 tonight. One, Mr. Mouton made comments about
20 bird strikes, but I'd like to introduce into
21 the record, they are not numbered documents,
22 they are photocopies of pictures of two recent
23 bird strikes that Air Logistics has encountered
24 with helicopters less than 500 feet above the
25 ground. I wish you all could see them, they're

1 quite dramatic in their presentation.

2 We cannot allow this landfill to get any
3 bigger, or Air Logistics will not be able to
4 operate at that airport. We are a \$250 million
5 dollar a year company. We are already making
6 provisions to move our training facility to
7 Abbeville, Louisiana on the airport where, by
8 the way, the bird hazard is much less.

9 Thank you for my time.

10 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

11 Thank you, sir.

12 E. H. Underwood

13 BY MR. UNDERWOOD:

14 My name is E. H. Underwood. I'm Vice-
15 President and General Counsel for Air
16 Logistics.

17 Like Mr. Mouton, I'd like to echo the
18 sentiments for everybody thus far in opposition
19 to this permit.

20 Based on what you've already heard, I think
21 it's sufficient to say that in the event
22 something catastrophic happens, there might be
23 blood on somebody's hands. And under the
24 circumstances, given the notice that you now
25 have, it may be tantamount to gross negligence

1 to allow this sort of thing to continue. You
2 know, if it walks like a duck and squawks like
3 a duck, it's a duck. This is a garbage dump
4 and it's going to bring bird traffic into the
5 area.

6 You've heard Mr. Grace opine that we may
7 have to move our facility. We'd hate to do
8 that, we've spent a lot of money here. We
9 employ a lot of people here. We don't want to
10 leave here. But, safety comes first when you
11 fly a helicopter and we can't allow this sort
12 of exposure to continue.

13 Thank you.

14 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

15 Thank you, sir.

16 Thomas Viator; is that correct?

17 Note for the record he's going to waive his
18 time.

19 Okay. Next are those citizens who live
20 within the parish of the facility.

21 I have Wilma Subra here. Note for the
22 record that she was here earlier and left and
23 she did submit an exhibit, Exhibit Number 1.

24 Mr. Richard Dennison.

25 BY MR. DENNISON:

1 My name is Richard Dennison. I live at 104
2 Teche Street here in New Iberia. I'm a private
3 policy and fly a fixed-wing aircraft out of
4 Acadiana Regional Airport.

5 I'm also a Commissioner serving on the
6 Iberia Parish Airport Authority, but my
7 comments tonight are personal concerns and
8 opinions and are not made on behalf of the
9 airport authority.

10 Please consider the following as a basis
11 not to grant the modifications to Gordon's
12 Water Discharge Permit. I have eight points.

13 One, as Dr. Mike McDaniel stated in his
14 letter of April 5th, 2006, that after reviewing
15 the garbage operations at Gordon's, LDEQ agreed
16 that it is not a pick-up station. He went on
17 further to say that it did not meet the
18 definition of a transfer station.

19 He said an emergency meeting would be held
20 shortly to properly classify the operations so
21 that they could be properly regulated.

22 As of today, no such meeting has been held,
23 nor has any reclassification been made.

24 Since LDEQ requires a permit for a transfer
25 station, and does not require a permit for a

1 pick-up station, it's logical that the issue
2 should be resolved before any action concerning
3 this operation is taken.

4 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
5 modification to the Water Discharge Permit of
6 an unclassified, un-permitted garbage operation
7 located in the middle of a C and D landfill,
8 less than 3,200 feet from the end of an active
9 runway.

10 Point two. Gordon's and people opposing
11 waste are currently in a lawsuit over the
12 renewal of Gordon's permit.

13 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
14 modification to the water discharge permit over
15 a landfill that may be closing in the future
16 due to litigation.

17 Point three. Gordon's and the Iberia
18 Parish Government are currently in a lawsuit
19 over Gordon's pickup transfer station not
20 having a permit from the parish.

21 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
22 modification to the water discharge permit for
23 the expansion of a pickup station that may be
24 closing in the near future due to litigation.

25 Point four. Gordon's expansion of a C and

1 D landfill, yard waste and pick-up transfer
2 station into Iberia Parish will require a
3 permit from the Iberia Parish Airport
4 Authority.

5 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
6 modification to the water discharge permit
7 allowing for the expansion into Iberia Parish
8 with no permit from the local governing
9 authority.

10 Five. Gordon's expansion of the C & D
11 landfill, yard waste and pick-up transfer
12 station into Iberia Parish is creating an
13 aviation safety hazard at Acadiana Regional
14 Airport. His operations are in the
15 approach/departure zones less than 3,300 feet
16 from the end of the runway.

17 Why has LDEQ ignored the FAA's rule about
18 bringing and handling garbage less than 10,000
19 feet from any runway used by turbine powered
20 aircraft?

21 Six. Acadiana Regional Airport has over
22 100,000 take-offs and landings each year.
23 Traffic ranges from Boeing 777's to Piper Cubs,
24 military aircraft from C-130 to T-28's,
25 helicopters from Chenook's to Robinson's. Cost

1 of these aircraft range from \$25,000 to \$150
2 million dollars each.

3 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
4 modification to the water discharge permit
5 allowing for the expansion, let alone the
6 existence, of an aviation safety hazard.

7 Seven. The aviation tenants are expanding
8 and now employ more than 700 people.

9 Why would LDEQ consider granting a
10 modification to the water discharge permit that
11 could cost these people their jobs.

12 Eight. The most compelling reason for LDEQ
13 to deny this permit is the increased danger
14 that Gordon's operation has caused to the
15 pilots and passengers that make those 100,000
16 take-offs and landings each year at Acadiana
17 Regional Airport.

18 People who live near the airport are also
19 exposed to this risk.

20 Aircraft, bird, wildlife strikes can and
21 have taken lives. Since 1990, there have been
22 193 deaths. How can LDEQ justify the granting
23 of this permit?

24 I look forward to LDEQ's response to these
25 questions and thank you for allowing me to

1 voice my objections.

2 I'd also like to submit, from December 30th,
3 2005, a aircraft report strike report of a Bell
4 206 Helicopter flying from Baton Rouge and at
5 500 feet it hit a vulture near Washington,
6 Louisiana.

7 The vulture went through the windshield and
8 I have some comments from the report. "The
9 pilot looked up to see a large vulture crashing
10 into the windshield. He was temporarily
11 blinded by blood and wind. After regaining
12 control, the pilot tried to land in a cane
13 field nearby, but blood was hampering his
14 vision. When the left skid hit the ground,
15 first caused the aircraft to tip on its side.
16 Pilot was taken to the hospital and had several
17 surgeries to repair his face, teeth and eye.
18 The aircraft was a total loss at \$1.5 million."

19 For the like of me, I don't understand how
20 we've gotten to this point, but LDEQ needs to
21 put an end to this.

22 Thank you.

23 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

24 Thank you, sir.

25 Next up I have Mr. Curtis Boudoin. Not

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

here. Note for the record Mr. Curtis Boudoin is not here.

Don Broussard.

BY MR. BROUSSARD:

I'm Don Broussard. I live at 4105 Walnut Drive right here in New Iberia.

I'm only representing myself tonight as a private citizen.

I'm on strong opposition to a dump at the end of the airport.

I've been in aviation about 30 years, the first half in maintenance, aircraft repair, aircraft inspection. A good part of that time spent right here at the airport working for one of the local operators.

They haven't asked me to represent them, so I'm not going to mention them. But being in the aircraft repair business, I've seen numerous bird strike incidents that I actually have had to repair and it ranges from nothing, maybe just a mess, to things that aren't pretty at all, you know, even on a small aircraft, you know, damage can run, you know, in the thousands, five thousand, ten thousand, fifteen thousand dollars, depending on what needs to be

1 done. The bigger the airplane gets, the more
2 expensive, the more dangerous it can become and
3 the more expensive it can be as well.

4 The second half of my 30 year aviation
5 career has been as a professional pilot. I
6 have had a bird strike in flight and that's not
7 real pretty easy -- either. In my case, there
8 was no real damage and no harm done, just a
9 mess.

10 But the government records that track
11 accidents, and numerous wildlife strikes, and
12 we've been talking about birds quite a bit
13 here, but it's everything. It's coyotes, it's
14 deer, small animals. We have a (inaudible)
15 population here in this part of the state, not
16 far from this area, and any kind of food source
17 will attract these animals. Even domestic
18 dogs. The more we have running around, the
19 more of a hazard it is.

20 I'm also a user of this airport for my own
21 personal use. I fly small aircraft frequently
22 with my family members, grandchildren, and it's
23 just a hazard that I don't think we need. It's
24 not good for our business and it's certainly
25 not good for safety and it's something that

1 could be prevented.

2 So I'm just in opposition. Thank you.

3 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

4 I have Pat Viator.

5 BY MR. VIATOR:

6 My name is Pat Viator, 5502 Jefferson
7 Island Road. I'm in opposition of this. I
8 represent A & M Farm Partnership and we have
9 land on the north and east side of Gordon's
10 Landfill, my brothers and I.

11 First comment I'd like to make, LDEQ wants
12 comments. Why are they letting him put water
13 in an oxidation pond that's in Iberia Parish?
14 The landfill is permitted for St. Martin Parish
15 and why is he pumping water from Iberia back
16 into St. Martin Parish in the old -- in the
17 fill that y'all let him have? That's a
18 comment.

19 I just don't understand what's happening.
20 Are we playing games? I just don't understand
21 it.

22 Okay. What was wrong with the old
23 oxidation pond? It never overflowed when we
24 had a big rain. Is this pond adequate, but
25 it's not adequate, but they have water in it.

1 And I could go on and on and reiterate what
2 the people that came up before me, but I'm just
3 going to ask DEQ to look at this, look at the
4 concerned citizens around there, the kids that
5 live there, the pilots and what's happening to
6 the airport because of this mess.

7 I thank you.

8 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

9 Thank you, sir.

10 Can't quite make out this last name. It's
11 Barbara, starts with an "F" last name.

12 What's your last name, ma'am?

13 BY MS. FOCO:

14 Foco, F-o-c-o.

15 Yes. My name is Barbara Foco. I have been
16 asked by Dr. Gallow (spelled phonetically), Dr.
17 Kent Brown with DEQ to be a resource to their
18 steering committee and I have accepted.

19 I'm also State Director for the State of
20 Louisiana Help for Sewage Victims and I speak
21 and share information with the public.

22 I want to start by saying that 911, the
23 attack on America, has taught us one thing, to
24 notice red flags.

25 Red flags have been popping up about Gordon

1 Doerle's, and in opposition of his expansion
2 and any further development of his landfill.

3 The citizens have come tonight, and I have
4 observant to a lot of their documents, their
5 letters. They even went out and took pictures,
6 something I feel that DEQ should have done, but
7 didn't. And if they did, they found nothing
8 wrong or they played down, I feel they played
9 down the violations that they found on Mr.
10 Gordon's landfill.

11 The people have property and the concerns
12 about the airport and the airport traffic, the
13 flying public. There are documents and
14 pictures of birds and garbage, and even I had
15 observed a letter from Dr. McDaniel that he
16 couldn't establish the difference between what
17 Gordon had, was it a transfer station or a
18 pick-up station. How can you regulate and
19 permit something that DEQ themselves have not
20 determined what he has?

21 The citizens have come forward many times
22 before tonight. They have pleaded with DEQ.
23 They have provided their statements in writing,
24 they've given pictures, and as far as I'm
25 concerned the citizens have done far beyond

1 what they were expected to do because these
2 things should have been done by DEQ when they
3 had got a call about a complaint.

4 I think time is of the essence and I think
5 that's one of the problems with DEQ not
6 responding in a timely fashion on a complaint.

7 To listen to people complain to y'all and
8 ask y'all to please don't permit this
9 modification and address the problems with
10 Gordon's Landfill. It saddens me because I
11 know what they're saying is true. I'm tired of
12 waiting for DEQ to stand up and respond.

13 There's going to be a listening session in
14 Baton Rouge and we'll be given an opportunity
15 for people to go forward and to voice their
16 concerns, but what would they accomplish going
17 from New Iberia to Baton Rouge if what they're
18 doing here is going to fall on deaf ears?

19 They put their things in writing and they
20 put themselves in the line of fire. They done
21 everything they could to protect their land,
22 but it keeps falling on deaf ears.

23 You know, but like I said, the 911 attack
24 on America has taught a lot of law enforcement,
25 and hopefully it will fall on agencies like DEQ

1 to recognize red flags because the people are
2 giving them to you. They're letting you know
3 the dangers. If you didn't know there were
4 pilots crashing, they're letting you know. If
5 you didn't know what a crashed plane looks
6 like, now you do. If you didn't know how many
7 people are worried and concerned about their
8 children, they're telling you, you know,
9 they're telling you. And y'all just have to
10 listen. But don't take what y'all are hearing
11 here and then go back to Baton Rouge and then
12 what each one of y'all decide to tell everybody
13 over there what your version was. Make sure
14 everybody is on the same team.

15 We don't want you to side with us, we don't
16 want you to side with Gordon. We want you to
17 side with the regulations that y'all are
18 bounded to protect the State of Louisiana from
19 these type of things.

20 It's a danger and it's been proven and I'm
21 voicing my concerns for the people and the
22 public of Iberia and St. Martinville.

23 Thank you.

24 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

25 Okay. At this time, we'd like to call on

1 the citizens who are in support of the draft
2 water discharge permit modification, followed
3 by those citizens who are opposed.

4 Yes, sir.

5 BY THE COURT REPORTER:

6 I couldn't hear him, sir.

7 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

8 In support of the permit application, Mr.
9 Edward Landry. Okay. Note for the record that
10 he has declined to comment.

11 And then Mr. Joe Sherhan is opposed to the
12 permit. Joe Sherhan.

13 BY MR. SHERHAN:

14 My name is Joe Sherhan. I live at 140
15 Hilltop Circle here in New Iberia and I work at
16 the Iberia Parish, ARA, the airport.

17 And I'd just like to say to Mr. Gordon, I
18 love your restaurant. I really do. Great
19 place and I frequent it and I really like it.

20 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

21 Sir, please direct your comments to the
22 record.

23 BY MR. SHERHAN:

24 All right. For the record, I'm the
25 Owner/President/CEO of Vortex Helicopters.

1 What that means is I'm sweeping the floors and
2 flying aircraft too.

3 I have 12 helicopters there at the airport
4 and I am concerned about bird strike activity.

5 A landfill draws birds. That's just the
6 way it is. It's a food source. There are
7 birds of prey, they feed on small rodents and
8 things like that at the landfill. And then
9 there are scavenger-type birds.

10 Both birds of prey and scavenger-type birds
11 are fairly large birds, and if you're talking
12 about, you know, a four to ten pound bird, and
13 you think well, helicopters aren't going that
14 fast. The truth of the matter is you can bring
15 a helicopter down with a bird stuck in the
16 rotor system. It'll come down right now. And
17 I don't want to see that happen to any of my
18 aircraft. And they're at the airport all the
19 time. They're making lots of take-offs and
20 landings there every day.

21 Also, because the landfill is on final
22 approach or the predominant runway, that means
23 you're landing fairly close to the south,
24 that's prevailing winds, it's right on final
25 approach at 150', 200' if you're flying an

1 airplane. I fly both airplanes and helicopters
2 and I can tell you, that's where you have your
3 highest workload as a pilot, right on final
4 approach. And it's enough to try to land an
5 aircraft without trying to dodge birds, too.
6 And I just don't want to see anybody get hurt,
7 and that's a very real possibility.

8 That's all I've got to say.

9 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

10 Thank you, sir.

11 Okay. I believe I've gone through everyone
12 who has signed up to speak. Has anyone signed
13 up to speak who I have not called? What's your
14 name, sir?

15 BY MR. VIATOR:

16 Pat Viator. (Mr. Viator brought exhibits up
17 to the hearing officer.)

18 BY MR. GLORIOSO:

19 One more time, has anyone signed up to
20 speak and has not been called on?

21 Is there anyone else who would like to
22 speak who hasn't signed up.

23 Note for the record that no one has
24 indicated that they would like to speak at this
25 time, and that everyone who has signed up has

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

been called on and spoken.

I will now make my closing remarks.

Are there any other comments?

Note for the record there are no additional comments.

I would like to remind you that the comment period for this draft water discharge permit modification application for Gordon's Disposal, LLC, Gordon Doerle Type III Construction and Demolition Debris Landfill ends at 12:30 p.m., Tuesday, January 16, 2007.

I have received a total of eight exhibits.

If there are no other comments, I would like to thank you for your attention and participation in this hearing.

Let the record reflect that it is 7:10 p.m.

This hearing is closed.

(Hearing ended at 7:10 p.m.)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

R E P O R T E R ' S P A G E

I, BRENDA M. LANDRY, Certified Court Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, before whom this hearing was taken, do hereby state on the Record:

That due to the interaction in the spontaneous discourse of this proceeding, dashes (--) have been used to indicate pauses, changes in thought, and/or talk overs;

That same is the proper method for a Court Reporter's transcription of proceedings, and that the dashes (--) do not indicate that words or phrases have been left out of this transcript;

That any words and/or names which could not be verified through reference material have been denoted with the phrase "(spelled phonetically)."

Brenda M. Landry
Certified Court Reporter

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, Brenda M. Landry, Certified Court Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, as the officer before whom this meeting was taken, do hereby certify the following;

That this hearing was reported by me in the voice-writing method, was prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal direction and supervision, and is a true and correct transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;

That I am not related to the parties herein; am not otherwise interested in the outcome of this matter; and am a valid member in good standing of the Louisiana State Board of Examiners of Certified Shorthand Reporters.

Brenda M. Landry
Certified Court Reporter
Louisiana License #99098

<p>A</p> <p>Abbeville 34:21 ability 55:17 able 34:18 about 15:8,25 17:6 20:24 23:2 24:11,12 25:12,17 26:18,19 27:3,19 29:3 33:6 34:6,7 39:17 42:12 43:16 46:10,24 47:17 49:1 51:1,11 above 32:15 34:12 absolutely 22:16 24:24 Acadiana 20:21 28:21 29:5 30:20 33:25 36:21 39:12,20 40:17 accept 2:9 accepted 46:2 Access 8:9 accessed 4:18 accident 19:11 accidents 43:15 accomplish 48:8 accordance 3:1 5:8 accordingly 11:15 account 16:7,8,10 accountable 21:10 acres 9:18 across 25:14 action 31:9 37:24 active 12:2 13:3 19:9 38:6 activities 12:15 activity 2:16 30:5 31:2 31:21,22 32:18 51:2 actual 31:5 actually 42:22 adamantly 19:17,20 add 31:2 added 15:3 addition 5:3 additional 3:19 4:22 8:12 10:5 53:6 address 7:13,23 8:24 24:14 47:24 addressed 3:25 adequate 45:5,6 adjacent 9:20 Administrative 3:2 5:9 advertising 4:2 Advocate 4:5 affluence 12:4 affluent 13:17 after 14:8 29:21 37:7 41:12 again 9:21 10:24 11:9 11:21 12:20 13:7 18:2 25:22 agencies 31:11 48:19</p>	<p>agency 2:15 19:18 agreed 37:9 Agricultural 21:20 Agriculture 31:12 air 29:17,22 31:24 33:24 34:11,17 35:5 aircraft 30:19 31:15,16 36:21 39:19,23,25 40:20 41:3,15,19 42:13,14,20,25 44:1 50:24 51:18 52:5 airplane 43:4 52:1 airplanes 52:1 airport 16:1,3,8,11,12 19:19,20 20:21 24:7 24:17 25:2,5 26:19 27:23 28:18,20,21 30:20,22 31:20 33:14 34:1,18,22 36:21,23 37:1 39:3,13,20 40:17 40:18 42:11,16 43:25 45:13 46:24,24 50:12 51:1,18 airports 27:5 Airport's 29:6 aka 31:25 Alleman 23:19,21 allow 25:2 34:16 35:16 36:2 allowed 14:7 15:9 allowing 14:4 39:6 40:4 40:25 almost 30:6 alone 40:4 along 25:14,19 already 26:22,23 27:17 27:17 34:20 35:10 alternate 6:24 although 19:6 America 46:8 48:17 and/or 54:16,21 Animal 31:12 animals 43:18,22 another 13:11 16:18 27:12 answer 3:7 anybody 52:7 anymore 21:24 22:9 anyone 7:4 14:6 16:11 25:13 52:14,20,22 anything 23:10 25:25 apartment 19:4 APIS 31:11 apologize 16:23 applicant 6:10 applicant's 7:16 application 1:2,9 8:19 10:10,11 12:18 50:3 53:9</p>	<p>applications 30:15 applied 13:18 apply 6:8 appreciate 24:2 approach 51:22,25 52:4 approach/départure 39:14 approximately 9:18 31:4 April 8:20 37:7 ARA 50:11 area 9:7,8 10:22,23 11:8 12:2 13:3,5,6,10 22:18 25:7 26:19,24 27:24 35:20 43:20 Army 31:23 around 23:8 43:23 45:11 article 22:22,24 ashamed 29:13 asked 42:18 45:24 asking 15:20 27:15,21 27:22 Assistance 5:20,21 attached 32:8 attack 46:8 48:17 attention 32:6 53:17 attract 43:21 August 9:4 21:15 authority 24:7 28:19 33:14 36:23 37:1 39:3 39:8 authorizes 9:6 available 4:11,17 average 31:3,6,7 aviation 39:12 40:5,6 42:12 43:8 away 22:13 A-2 21:20 a.m 4:15</p> <p>B</p> <p>back 14:14 20:23 22:17 30:24 31:19 44:22 49:5 background 8:2 Barbara 45:19,23 base 24:19 based 7:3 30:23 35:10 basically 7:25 17:11 basis 15:10 37:3 Baton 4:6,14 5:22 7:23 41:4 48:5,8 49:5 bay 11:1 beautiful 22:19 become 10:4 43:6 Bedminster 17:24 before 1:11 23:11 27:11</p>	<p>31:10 37:23 45:9 47:10 54:10 55:11 begin 7:12 14:4 17:5 beginning 1:13 begun 30:22 behalf 28:18 36:25 behavior 3:16 being 3:6 7:10 12:3 25:8 26:22 27:8,9,19 33:11 42:20 believe 16:7 52:12 Bell 41:4 Besides 25:7 best 55:17 bet 29:12 between 6:24 26:15 27:4 47:4 beyond 47:14 big 45:5 bigger 34:17 43:4 bird 19:11 30:21 31:1,3 31:5 32:8,12,14,18,23 32:25 34:7,10,22 35:20 40:20 42:21 43:10 51:1,12,15 birds 33:11,13 43:16 47:1 51:3,5,8,9,10,10 52:6 bit 25:11 43:17 black 31:25 blinded 41:11 blood 35:13 41:11,13 Board 55:22 Boeing 39:22 both 32:1 51:9 52:1 bothers 15:7 Boudoin 42:1,3 boundaries 29:7 bounded 49:13 Box 5:22 Brenda 1:11 54:9 55:1 55:10 56:2 brief 11:22 28:17 bring 35:20 51:14 bringing 39:17 brothers 44:16 brought 24:5 52:17 Broussard 42:4,5,6 Brown 45:25 build 24:23 building 18:1 business 19:4 26:16 42:20 44:5 businesses 27:5</p> <p>C</p> <p>C 9:21 10:3 38:4,24 39:9 55:9,9 call 17:16 29:20 32:6</p>	<p>47:17 49:20 called 7:8 52:15,21 53:2 came 25:14 45:9 46:14 47:9 cane 41:13 capacity 10:5 career 43:9 case 26:6 33:16 43:12 catastrophic 35:12 catch 23:5 cause 16:2 22:4 caused 40:14 41:15 ceases 17:11 Center 4:13 ceremony 24:6 certain 28:23 certainly 44:5 Certified 1:11 54:9 55:2,10,22 56:3 certify 55:12 Chairman 20:21 change 3:13 11:16 21:20 changes 11:23 54:15 changing 12:24 chart 31:19 32:24 Chenook's 39:24 children 49:2 Circle 50:10 circumstances 35:14 citizen 6:7 26:17 42:9 citizens 6:14,17,20 20:7 26:16,18 27:5,24 36:10 45:11 46:14 47:9,14 49:21,23 civil 31:15,16 32:8,12 32:15,21 33:10 classify 37:14 clearly 29:15 30:25 close 16:1 30:16 51:23 closed 53:21 closing 13:16 33:14 38:12,22 53:3 Coast 31:25 Code 3:2 5:9 combined 31:18 come 7:16 14:12 18:17 20:23 25:19 51:16 comes 25:8 36:1 coming 26:3 comment 3:5,22 4:3 44:17,24 50:5 53:8 comments 2:10 3:9,24 5:10,12,17 14:6,8 20:22 21:11 28:17,22 34:7 36:24 41:8 44:18 50:18 53:4,6,16 commercial 21:21 22:2 Commissioner 36:22</p>
--	--	---	--	---

committee 46:1 commonly 32:22 company 34:19 compelling 40:12 complain 47:22 complaint 47:17,21 complaints 27:18 complete 12:15 compliance 18:21 19:6 comply 14:25,25 components 33:10 concern 15:16,25 concerned 15:14 26:18 45:11 47:13 49:1 51:1 concerning 2:10 3:10 37:24 concerns 36:24 46:24 48:7 49:16 concrete 18:1 concur 28:21 conditions 3:4 conducted 3:6 conjunction 11:12 connected 15:23 consider 37:2 38:1,10 38:19 39:4 40:2,9 considered 5:11,14 constructed 8:17 12:3 construction 1:10 2:13 2:20 8:4 9:12,16 10:5 10:14 11:16 12:15 17:4,11 18:19,22 21:9 21:12,18 53:11 contain 10:7 contains 11:1 29:24 contemplating 24:10 continually 25:3 continue 30:10,14 35:17 36:3 Continued 15:8 contrary 25:4 control 41:12 copies 4:22 5:3 copy 4:10 correct 36:7 55:17 cost 39:25 40:11 Coteau 2:18 8:6 coulee 22:8,10,14 coulee's 21:25 Council 27:4 Counsel 35:5 count 29:22 30:1,9 countries 27:10 course 23:1 court 1:11 14:15 18:9 18:11 20:17 49:25 54:9,17 55:2,10 56:3 Courteous 3:16 Courthouse 1:12	Courtroom 1:12 courts 19:15 cover 32:6 coyotes 43:18 craft 30:5 32:2 crashed 48:24 crashing 41:10 48:22 creating 13:1 39:11 Cubs 39:23 current 9:3,5 15:1 currently 12:8 13:24 38:8,15 Curtis 42:1,2 C-130 39:23 <hr/> D D 9:21 10:3 38:5,25 39:9 Daily 4:8 damage 32:12,21 42:25 43:12 damaged 33:11,12 danger 40:14 49:15 dangerous 43:5 dangers 48:21 dashes 54:14,19 date 9:4 21:16 daughter 24:3 day 1:13 17:23 18:2 51:20 deaf 48:10,14 deal 19:5 deaths 40:22 debris 1:10 2:13 9:13 9:16 10:6 18:19,22 23:5 53:11 December 4:7,9 5:7 29:23 41:2 decide 27:13 49:7 decided 24:12 decision 5:12 declined 23:20 50:5 deer 43:18 defer 20:22 definition 22:5 37:11 delete 12:18 deleting 12:10,25 demolition 1:10 2:13 8:4 9:12,16 10:6,14 53:11 denied 17:10,23 18:24 19:14 24:15 Dennison 36:16,17,18 denoted 54:23 deny 5:15 27:22 28:1 40:13 Department 2:5 5:14 6:9 31:11 department's 3:25	depending 43:3 DEQ 3:9 4:12,20 15:20 17:16,23 18:13 19:10 21:8,11 22:6 24:14 27:21,22 45:10,25 46:17 47:7,11,16,19 48:2,19 description 11:22 12:13 design 11:16 determined 47:8 determining 5:15 developed 9:18 development 46:12 difference 47:4 direct 50:18 direction 55:16 director 20:23 33:23 46:3 directs 28:19 discharge 1:1,9 2:11,22 3:10,15 4:4,10 5:16 5:18 6:25 8:22 9:6 11:11,12,19,19 13:8 13:13 17:6,9,10 22:3 22:14 23:11 37:4 38:2 38:11,20 39:5 40:3,10 49:22 53:9 discharged 11:4 12:5 27:19 discharges 10:7 discourse 54:14 disposal 1:10 2:12 7:22 8:3,16 9:8 10:14,20 53:10 dispose 9:15 disposed 11:8 distorts 29:15 district 17:3 Division 5:21 document 4:19 29:24 30:18 31:7,10 32:4 documented 30:4 documents 29:19 30:23 34:9 46:15 47:1 dodge 52:6 Doerle 1:10 2:12 53:10 Doerle's 18:5 46:11 dogs 43:22 doing 12:24 48:9 dollar 34:19 dollars 40:1 43:3 domestic 43:22 Don 42:4,6 done 15:8 23:13 25:18 25:21 43:4,13 46:18 47:14,16 48:13 down 21:25 25:10 32:19 46:20,20 51:14 51:16	downplay 17:8 Dr 37:6 45:24,25 47:3 draft 1:1,9 2:10 3:4,10 3:14 4:4,10 5:16,17 6:25 13:20 49:22 53:8 drains 21:24 dramatic 34:14 draws 51:3 Drive 42:7 duck 35:18,18,19 due 38:13,22 54:13 dump 35:19 42:10 dumped 17:25 during 6:6 duties 30:14 <hr/> E E 35:2,4 54:8,8,8 55:9 each 6:23 7:11 39:21 40:1,16 49:6 earlier 36:13 ears 48:10,15 east 4:24 44:15 easy 43:11 eat 22:19 echo 35:7 EDMS 4:19 Edward 50:4 effect 11:18 effective 9:3 eight 23:3 37:5 40:12 53:14 either 26:4 43:11 Electronic 4:18 electronically 4:18 elements 28:23 emergency 37:13 employ 35:24 40:7 employed 2:4 encountered 34:11 encourage 34:3 end 18:17 25:3 38:6 39:15 41:22 42:11 ended 53:22 ends 53:12 enforcement 48:18 Engineering 7:21 enough 52:5 enterprise 22:2 Environmental 2:6 5:6 5:20,21 environmentally 9:14 equipment 2:25 11:2,4 13:13 essence 47:18 essentially 12:6,24 13:23 establish 47:4 Estis 24:1	evaluated 3:24 even 22:19,20 23:15 27:11,20 42:25 43:22 46:16 47:2 evening 2:2,7 17:1,5 23:24 33:20 event 35:12 ever 15:8 every 51:20 everybody 28:6 35:8 49:7,8 everyone 3:17 52:13 53:1 everything 21:24 25:4 25:5 43:17 48:13 Examiners 55:22 except 4:16 28:22 excuse 13:15 30:24 33:12 exhibit 36:14,14 exhibits 52:18 53:15 existence 40:5 existing 8:18,21 9:21,25 12:20 13:19,25 expanding 40:7 expansion 8:11,16,24 9:19,19,22 38:21,24 39:6,9 40:4 46:12 expected 3:16 47:15 expensive 43:5,6 expired 21:13,16 expires 9:4 exposed 17:22 40:19 exposes 17:21 exposure 36:2 express 15:16 eye 41:18 eyes 30:16 <hr/> F F 20:10 45:19 55:9 FAA 19:16,16 31:14 FAA's 39:16 face 25:15 41:18 facilities 25:10 facility 6:16,19,22 8:1,5 8:6,11,12,16,18,22,24 9:19,22 11:13,17,20 12:14 17:17,21,25 18:4,14 19:3,17 20:8 24:17,23 25:3 28:8,10 28:15 29:16 34:21 35:22 36:11 fact 13:16 19:8 fairly 25:8 51:10,23 fall 48:10,18 falling 10:21 23:15 48:14 falls 13:4 23:1
--	--	---	---	--

<p>family 22:17 24:18 44:2 far 35:8 43:20 47:13,14 Farm 44:14 fashion 47:20 fast 51:13 father 24:16,21 features 29:11 federal 31:11 feed 51:5 feel 20:24 46:17,20 feet 19:9 22:13 23:4 32:15,18 34:12 38:5 39:15,18 41:5 few 25:16 field 29:17 41:13 fifteen 43:2 fight 26:5 fill 12:2 13:3 44:23 final 5:12 13:14 51:21 51:25 52:4 Finally 22:22 find 17:15 18:3,13 fined 26:9 finest 24:24 finish 14:7 fire 48:12 first 6:14 14:12 20:6 34:2 36:1 41:15 42:13 44:17 fish 22:19,19 fishing 22:12 five 14:6 22:15 33:4 39:9 43:1 fixed 32:1 fixed-wing 36:20 flags 46:9,10 48:19 flight 32:11 33:23 43:10 floors 50:23 fly 36:1,20 44:1 52:1 flying 23:5,7 41:4 46:25 50:24 52:1 Foco 45:21,22,23 fold 25:24 follow 6:2 15:22 followed 27:9,15 49:23 following 6:2 12:12 37:2 55:13 follows 6:13 food 43:21 51:4 foot 23:2 Force 31:24 form 7:4 format 3:7 forward 7:17 19:23 40:24 47:9 48:6 found 31:7 46:19,21 four 23:6 32:22 38:24 51:11</p>	<p>Fred 20:14,20 Fremin 14:13,17,18 17:2 19:1 20:12 21:6 frequent 50:15 frequently 44:2 Friday's 4:16 friends 22:17 from 3:1 9:7 10:17 11:3 11:7,20 12:2,4,16 13:3,9 18:8 19:4 21:20 22:3,13 29:21 30:5,23 31:22 32:9,18 38:5,17 39:2,7,15,18 39:22,23,24 40:1 41:2 41:4,8 42:23 43:20 44:22 47:3 48:8 49:14 front 23:3 26:24 full 22:1,18 function 9:11 17:12 further 37:10 46:12 future 15:18 26:19 38:13,22 F-o-c-o 45:22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">G</p> <p>G 54:8 Galloway 45:24 games 45:1 garbage 17:21,25 22:3 23:5,7 29:14 35:19 37:8 38:3 39:17 47:2 gave 24:18,19 general 8:1 35:5 gets 21:25 27:13 43:4 Ghosn 5:19 give 6:5 11:22,23 14:11 17:18 20:23 29:21 30:1,18 32:5 given 3:21 6:13 7:7 26:21,21 29:18 35:14 47:12 48:5 giving 7:25 48:20 Glorioso 2:1,4 14:2 16:16,22 20:1 21:1 23:17 28:4 33:1,5,17 34:25 36:5 41:24 44:9 45:16 49:19 50:2,17 52:10,19 gnats 29:12 go 21:19 22:12,16 27:11 30:5 31:4,19 45:8 48:6 49:5 goes 22:10 going 14:11,20 15:20 15:22 18:16 19:12,13 19:16,19,22 27:2 28:17 29:18,25 30:18 30:24 32:5 35:20 36:8 42:19 45:10 48:4,8,9</p>	<p>51:13 gone 52:12 good 2:2 15:2 17:1 23:24 26:7,13,15 32:17 33:20 42:14 44:4,5 55:21 Gordon 1:10 2:12 18:5 18:7,18 46:11 47:5 49:11 50:13 53:10 Gordon's 1:10 2:11,20 7:22 8:3,16 17:3,11 19:20 21:9,12,18 37:4 37:9 38:7,9,14,16,24 39:9 40:14 44:16 46:21 47:25 53:10 gotten 41:21 governing 39:8 government 17:24 18:8 18:24 19:14 24:22 27:25 31:22 38:15 43:14 Grace 33:18,19,21 35:21 grandchildren 44:3 grandfather 24:5 grant 34:4 37:3 granted 30:12 granting 38:1,10,19 39:4 40:2,9,23 Great 50:15 greater 31:18 gross 29:4 35:16 ground 23:1 32:16 34:13 41:15 groups 32:23 growth 25:1 28:20 Guard 31:25 guidelines 25:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">H</p> <p>H 23:25 35:2,4 half 15:4 42:13 43:8 hampering 41:14 handle 21:24 handled 15:15,18 handling 39:17 hands 35:13 happen 19:11 51:17 happened 21:17 24:21 happening 45:1,13 happens 35:12 Happy 27:16,16 hard 25:16 harm 43:12 hate 35:22 having 38:17 hazard 34:23 39:12 40:5 43:23 44:3 Headquarters 4:23 5:1</p>	<p>Health 31:12 hear 20:18 50:1 heard 3:13 35:10,21 hearing 1:1,9 2:7,9 3:6 3:9,12,23 4:3 6:6,23 7:2,10 19:23 24:10 26:25 30:13 49:5 52:18 53:18,21,22 54:11 55:14 height 32:15 held 37:14,18 helicopter 33:10 36:1 41:4 51:14 helicopters 30:11 32:9 32:13,15,22 33:12,24 34:12 39:24 50:22,25 51:12 52:2 Help 46:4 helping 24:17 her 14:8 24:5 highest 52:3 Highway 8:10 Hilltop 50:10 him 14:12 18:8,11,24 19:14 20:18 44:18,24 50:1 hired 23:6 historical 15:2 historically 14:21 history 15:17 hit 25:15 41:5,15 hold 22:8 holding 21:9 holidays 4:16 Homeland 31:24 hopefully 48:18 hospital 41:17 hour 6:12,14,17,20,23 hours 4:15 17:22 house 19:4 huge 23:2 Hulin 16:19,20,21,23 16:25 17:1 hundreds 23:4 hurt 52:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">I</p> <p>Iberia 1:11,12,12,12 2:14,14,18,19 4:8,23 4:24,24 8:7,7 16:9 17:23 18:8,23 19:13 24:7,22 33:22 36:19 36:23 38:14 39:1,2,6 39:11 42:7 44:20,22 48:8 49:17 50:10,11 Iberian 4:8 idea 11:23 ignored 39:16 III 1:10 2:13 8:4 53:11</p>	<p>implemented 11:24 importance 17:9 important 17:13 19:7,7 improperly 29:9,9 inaudible 20:16 43:19 incidents 30:23 42:21 include 2:21 31:16 32:25 included 8:13 10:9 11:10 13:20 includes 8:14 9:22 incoming 10:16 increase 30:8 31:1 increased 40:13 increasing 15:11 Indest 33:21 indicate 54:15,19 indicated 52:25 indicates 14:24 individuals 3:13 5:4 information 3:20 4:17 7:3,6 46:5 informational 18:16 infractions 14:22,24 15:3,9 inside 18:1 inspection 4:12 31:13 42:14 interaction 54:13 Interest 2:15 interested 3:20 16:13 55:20 internal 11:5 13:11 introduce 34:8 introduction 8:1 introductory 6:11 7:17 Involuntarily 24:20 ironic 17:15 18:3 Island 44:13 issue 5:15 37:23 it'll 15:17 51:16 I-3 21:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">J</p> <p>January 1:3,13 2:8 5:11,13 21:17 53:13 Jay 2:4 Jefferson 44:12 jeopardy 16:14 Jessica 23:19,21 jobs 40:11 Joe 50:6,7,9 July 9:5 just 8:24 11:21 18:15 19:1 21:8,14,25 22:23 23:3 25:11 27:1,11 30:16 32:5 42:23 43:13 44:3,8,25 45:1 45:10 49:3 50:13 51:3</p>
---	--	---	--	---

52:6 justify 40:22	let 2:2 19:23 20:23 22:16 40:4 44:24 53:19	love 50:14 LPDES 8:21 LPDS 12:11	mile 6:15,18 19:4 20:7 28:7,10 miles 28:15 military 31:17,21 39:23 million 34:19 40:1 41:19 mind 32:3 minds 17:14 minutes 6:10 14:7 25:16 33:4,7 mis 16:23 misrepresentation 29:5 Miss 5:19 modification 1:2,9 2:11 3:5,11,15 4:5,11 5:16 5:18 7:1 8:19,23 10:11 11:25 12:18 17:7 38:2,11,20 39:5 40:3,10 47:24 49:22 53:9 modifications 8:14 37:3 modify 2:21 8:21 Monday 4:15 money 35:23 monitor 13:18 monitoring 22:6 month 29:23 more 14:6 19:7 26:11 26:11 33:16 40:7 43:5 43:5,6,22,23 52:20 most 18:15 32:17,22 40:12 Mouton 28:11,12,13 34:6 35:7 move 12:9 34:20 35:22 much 31:18 34:23 municipal 10:13 must 6:9 myself 26:20 42:8	needs 14:6 21:13,19 25:5 41:22 43:3 neglect 30:14 negligence 35:16 neighborhood 21:23 22:8 neighbors 22:9 Nelson 21:3,4,6 netting 23:5 never 15:10 18:2 45:4 new 1:12 2:14,18 4:8,24 8:7 10:8,24 11:9 13:1 13:20,23 27:16,16 33:21 36:19 42:7 48:8 50:10 newly 12:3 News 4:6 next 25:19,23 28:9 32:20 36:10 42:1 NONE 20:5 non-compliant 15:6 non-contact 2:23 north 4:13 44:15 note 20:11 23:20 32:17 36:8,12 42:2 50:4 52:24 53:5 noted 8:25 20:5 nothing 15:7 21:17 42:23 46:19 notice 4:2 5:4 35:14 46:9 number 2:15,16,17 28:18,25,25 29:4,8,15 29:22 32:14,20 36:15 numbered 34:9 numerous 14:22 42:21 43:15
<hr/> K <hr/>	letter 37:7 47:2 letters 19:18 46:16 letting 44:18 48:21,23 Let's 20:8 level 32:16 Library 4:23 5:1 License 56:4 light 18:2 like 7:15 11:21 13:16 17:5 20:11,22 21:15 23:13 34:2,5,7 35:7,7 35:18,18 41:2,20 44:17 48:16,19,24 49:20 50:13,16 51:6 52:22,25 53:7,17	<hr/> M <hr/>	<hr/> O <hr/>	
keep 32:3 keeps 48:14 Kent 45:25 kick 25:20 kids 22:15 45:12 kill 27:12 kind 43:21 know 15:10 17:6,10 19:2 21:23 22:12 24:9 25:12,15,16,21,25 27:10 35:17 42:24,25 43:1 48:1,16,21,22,23 48:24,25 49:2 51:11 knows 22:5	limit 6:7 limitations 3:3 13:17 line 32:4 48:12 list 5:5 listen 47:22 49:4 listening 48:4 litigation 38:13,23 litter 23:14 little 25:11 live 6:15,21 20:7 24:1 26:18 27:6,7 36:10,18 40:18 42:6 45:12 50:9 lived 27:9 lives 28:7 40:21 LLC 1:10 2:12 7:22 8:3 53:10 local 10:17 39:7 42:16 located 2:18 8:6 9:20 16:5 38:4 location 6:16,19,21 8:17 12:10,25 16:4 logical 37:22 Logistics 33:24 34:11 34:17 35:6 long 26:2 longer 10:3 look 19:23 25:17 32:24 40:24 45:10,11 looked 41:9 looks 48:24 lose 16:11,12 loss 41:19 lot 21:7 35:23,24 46:15 48:17 lots 51:19 Louisiana 1:11,13 2:5 2:15 3:2 4:8,14,25 5:2 5:8,22,24 7:24 8:7,9 24:25 34:21 41:6 46:4 49:14 54:10 55:11,21 56:4	M 1:11 44:14 54:9 55:1 55:10 56:2 made 29:19 34:6 36:25 37:19 mailed 5:4 mailing 5:5 Main 4:24 7:23 maintain 26:13 maintained 5:6 26:7 maintains 9:15 11:13 maintenance 8:14,25 9:23 11:1,7,17 13:9 28:20 42:13 make 7:17 20:9 29:4 40:15 44:17 45:18 49:8 53:3 makes 27:1 making 34:20 51:19 manage 9:12 10:12 Management 4:19 manages 28:19 manner 9:14 many 24:16,16,18,21 47:9 48:25 map 28:25 29:3,11,15 Martin 1:11 2:14,19 4:25 8:8 16:5 18:20 18:21 44:21,22 Martinville 4:7 5:2 21:14,19 49:17 material 54:22 Mathilda 21:3,6 matter 51:14 55:20 may 3:17 4:22 5:18 6:5 7:13 35:15,22 38:12 38:22 maybe 22:13 42:23 ma'am 23:18 45:20 McDaniel 37:6 47:3 means 27:25 50:23 51:23 meet 37:11 meeting 37:13,17 55:12 member 55:21 members 22:17 24:18 44:2 men 23:6 mention 42:19 mess 42:23 43:13 45:14 method 54:17 55:15 Michael 23:22,25 middle 38:4 might 31:9 35:13 Mike 23:25 37:6	misrepresentation 29:5 Miss 5:19 modification 1:2,9 2:11 3:5,11,15 4:5,11 5:16 5:18 7:1 8:19,23 10:11 11:25 12:18 17:7 38:2,11,20 39:5 40:3,10 47:24 49:22 53:9 modifications 8:14 37:3 modify 2:21 8:21 Monday 4:15 money 35:23 monitor 13:18 monitoring 22:6 month 29:23 more 14:6 19:7 26:11 26:11 33:16 40:7 43:5 43:5,6,22,23 52:20 most 18:15 32:17,22 40:12 Mouton 28:11,12,13 34:6 35:7 move 12:9 34:20 35:22 much 31:18 34:23 municipal 10:13 must 6:9 myself 26:20 42:8	newly 12:3 News 4:6 next 25:19,23 28:9 32:20 36:10 42:1 NONE 20:5 non-compliant 15:6 non-contact 2:23 north 4:13 44:15 note 20:11 23:20 32:17 36:8,12 42:2 50:4 52:24 53:5 noted 8:25 20:5 nothing 15:7 21:17 42:23 46:19 notice 4:2 5:4 35:14 46:9 number 2:15,16,17 28:18,25,25 29:4,8,15 29:22 32:14,20 36:15 numbered 34:9 numerous 14:22 42:21 43:15
<hr/> L <hr/>	land 21:25 22:11 24:19 41:13 44:15 48:14 52:5 landfill 1:10 2:14,20 8:4 9:11,14,21 10:3,15,19 14:20 17:4 18:5,19,23 19:21 21:10,13,18 26:7 27:18 34:16 38:5 38:12,25 39:10 44:16 44:20 46:13,22 47:25 51:3,7,21 53:12 landing 51:23 landings 39:21 40:16 51:20 Landry 1:11 50:4 54:9 55:1,10 56:2 large 41:9 51:10 larger 10:18 largest 33:25 last 7:8 20:9 22:24 33:9 45:18,19,20 law 15:1,22 48:17 laws 18:22 25:9 27:7,8 27:12,14,15 lawsuit 18:10 38:8,16 lawsuits 18:7,12 LA0097888 2:16 LDEQ 5:19 6:1 8:20 29:2 37:9,20 38:1,10 38:19 39:4,16 40:2,9 40:13,22 41:21 44:17 LDEQ's 40:24 leave 33:9 35:25 leery 26:3 left 36:13 41:14 54:20 Legislature 6:1 less 34:12,23 38:5 39:14 39:17	let 2:2 19:23 20:23 22:16 40:4 44:24 53:19 letter 37:7 47:2 letters 19:18 46:16 letting 44:18 48:21,23 Let's 20:8 level 32:16 Library 4:23 5:1 License 56:4 light 18:2 like 7:15 11:21 13:16 17:5 20:11,22 21:15 23:13 34:2,5,7 35:7,7 35:18,18 41:2,20 44:17 48:16,19,24 49:20 50:13,16 51:6 52:22,25 53:7,17	<hr/> N <hr/>	<hr/> O <hr/>
LADEQ 34:3 land 21:25 22:11 24:19 41:13 44:15 48:14 52:5 landfill 1:10 2:14,20 8:4 9:11,14,21 10:3,15,19 14:20 17:4 18:5,19,23 19:21 21:10,13,18 26:7 27:18 34:16 38:5 38:12,25 39:10 44:16 44:20 46:13,22 47:25 51:3,7,21 53:12 landing 51:23 landings 39:21 40:16 51:20 Landry 1:11 50:4 54:9 55:1,10 56:2 large 41:9 51:10 larger 10:18 largest 33:25 last 7:8 20:9 22:24 33:9 45:18,19,20 law 15:1,22 48:17 laws 18:22 25:9 27:7,8 27:12,14,15 lawsuit 18:10 38:8,16 lawsuits 18:7,12 LA0097888 2:16 LDEQ 5:19 6:1 8:20 29:2 37:9,20 38:1,10 38:19 39:4,16 40:2,9 40:13,22 41:21 44:17 LDEQ's 40:24 leave 33:9 35:25 leery 26:3 left 36:13 41:14 54:20 Legislature 6:1 less 34:12,23 38:5 39:14 39:17	limit 6:7 limitations 3:3 13:17 line 32:4 48:12 list 5:5 listen 47:22 49:4 listening 48:4 litigation 38:13,23 litter 23:14 little 25:11 live 6:15,21 20:7 24:1 26:18 27:6,7 36:10,18 40:18 42:6 45:12 50:9 lived 27:9 lives 28:7 40:21 LLC 1:10 2:12 7:22 8:3 53:10 local 10:17 39:7 42:16 located 2:18 8:6 9:20 16:5 38:4 location 6:16,19,21 8:17 12:10,25 16:4 logical 37:22 Logistics 33:24 34:11 34:17 35:6 long 26:2 longer 10:3 look 19:23 25:17 32:24 40:24 45:10,11 looked 41:9 looks 48:24 lose 16:11,12 loss 41:19 lot 21:7 35:23,24 46:15 48:17 lots 51:19 Louisiana 1:11,13 2:5 2:15 3:2 4:8,14,25 5:2 5:8,22,24 7:24 8:7,9 24:25 34:21 41:6 46:4 49:14 54:10 55:11,21 56:4	M 1:11 44:14 54:9 55:1 55:10 56:2 made 29:19 34:6 36:25 37:19 mailed 5:4 mailing 5:5 Main 4:24 7:23 maintain 26:13 maintained 5:6 26:7 maintains 9:15 11:13 maintenance 8:14,25 9:23 11:1,7,17 13:9 28:20 42:13 make 7:17 20:9 29:4 40:15 44:17 45:18 49:8 53:3 makes 27:1 making 34:20 51:19 manage 9:12 10:12 Management 4:19 manages 28:19 manner 9:14 many 24:16,16,18,21 47:9 48:25 map 28:25 29:3,11,15 Martin 1:11 2:14,19 4:25 8:8 16:5 18:20 18:21 44:21,22 Martinville 4:7 5:2 21:14,19 49:17 material 54:22 Mathilda 21:3,6 matter 51:14 55:20 may 3:17 4:22 5:18 6:5 7:13 35:15,22 38:12 38:22 maybe 22:13 42:23 ma'am 23:18 45:20 McDaniel 37:6 47:3 means 27:25 50:23 51:23 meet 37:11 meeting 37:13,17 55:12 member 55:21 members 22:17 24:18 44:2 men 23:6 mention 42:19 mess 42:23 43:13 45:14 method 54:17 55:15 Michael 23:22,25 middle 38:4 might 31:9 35:13 Mike 23:25 37:6	misrepresentation 29:5 Miss 5:19 modification 1:2,9 2:11 3:5,11,15 4:5,11 5:16 5:18 7:1 8:19,23 10:11 11:25 12:18 17:7 38:2,11,20 39:5 40:3,10 47:24 49:22 53:9 modifications 8:14 37:3 modify 2:21 8:21 Monday 4:15 money 35:23 monitor 13:18 monitoring 22:6 month 29:23 more 14:6 19:7 26:11 26:11 33:16 40:7 43:5 43:5,6,22,23 52:20 most 18:15 32:17,22 40:12 Mouton 28:11,12,13 34:6 35:7 move 12:9 34:20 35:22 much 31:18 34:23 municipal 10:13 must 6:9 myself 26:20 42:8	newly 12:3 News 4:6 next 25:19,23 28:9 32:20 36:10 42:1 NONE 20:5 non-compliant 15:6 non-contact 2:23 north 4:13 44:15 note 20:11 23:20 32:17 36:8,12 42:2 50:4 52:24 53:5 noted 8:25 20:5 nothing 15:7 21:17 42:23 46:19 notice 4:2 5:4 35:14 46:9 number 2:15,16,17 28:18,25,25 29:4,8,15 29:22 32:14,20 36:15 numbered 34:9 numerous 14:22 42:21 43:15
<hr/> N <hr/>	<hr/> O <hr/>	<hr/> N <hr/>	<hr/> O <hr/>	
N 55:9 name 2:4 7:12,20 14:14 14:16,18 17:1,19 20:9 20:20 23:25 28:13 33:20 35:4 36:18 44:12 45:18,19,20,23 50:9 52:15 names 16:24 29:20 54:21 Naray 17:1 21:15 NASA 31:22 natural 29:11 Navy 24:19 31:23 near 38:22 40:18 41:5 nearby 41:13 necessary 7:6 need 44:4 needed 24:11	O 54:8 55:9 object 30:7 objections 41:1 observant 46:15 observed 47:2 occurs 32:18 off 7:25 office 5:6,20,22 13:9 officer 2:7 6:4,4 52:18 55:11 official 6:5 14:10 16:18 officials 6:8 17:16 20:3 27:25 off-loaded 10:17 off-sited 10:19 okay 18:15 19:18 20:11 33:9 36:10 45:3 49:20 50:4 52:12 old 12:17 44:23 45:3 once 12:6,14 17:25	N 55:9 name 2:4 7:12,20 14:14 14:16,18 17:1,19 20:9 20:20 23:25 28:13 33:20 35:4 36:18 44:12 45:18,19,20,23 50:9 52:15 names 16:24 29:20 54:21 Naray 17:1 21:15 NASA 31:22 natural 29:11 Navy 24:19 31:23 near 38:22 40:18 41:5 nearby 41:13 necessary 7:6 need 44:4 needed 24:11	O 54:8 55:9 object 30:7 objections 41:1 observant 46:15 observed 47:2 occurs 32:18 off 7:25 office 5:6,20,22 13:9 officer 2:7 6:4,4 52:18 55:11 official 6:5 14:10 16:18 officials 6:8 17:16 20:3 27:25 off-loaded 10:17 off-sited 10:19 okay 18:15 19:18 20:11 33:9 36:10 45:3 49:20 50:4 52:12 old 12:17 44:23 45:3 once 12:6,14 17:25	

<p>33:16 one 6:12 14:10 18:8,16 19:3,22 22:5,25 24:24 27:12 28:18,22 29:4,8 29:22 30:23 33:9 34:6 37:6 42:16 46:8 47:19 49:6 52:20,24 only 3:3 18:16 19:22 27:22 29:8 30:8,21 31:5,16 42:8 onto 22:11 open 3:5 operate 34:18 operates 8:3 operating 27:14 32:1 operation 11:17 18:25 30:12,17 31:9 37:24 38:4 40:14 operational 30:1,9 operations 8:12 30:2 31:19 33:23 37:8,15 39:13 operator 14:21 26:6 operators 42:17 opine 35:21 opinions 36:25 opportunity 3:21 7:7 14:9 24:2 33:15 48:6 oppose 34:3 opposed 7:1 19:17,20 49:23 50:6 opposing 18:10 38:8 opposition 3:18 14:19 35:9 42:10 44:8,13 46:11 order 6:2 7:2,8 organization 7:13 original 10:3 originally 10:2 other 20:3 27:10 29:11 30:15 31:25 53:4,16 otherwise 31:8 55:20 ought 29:13 out 15:5 20:9 30:7 31:20 36:21 45:18 46:16 54:20 outcome 55:20 outfall 2:22,23,24,25 9:7,8,10 10:7,9,25 11:5,6,6,9,9 12:5,8,10 12:10,11,16,16,19,20 12:21,23,23,25,25 13:1,2,7,8,11,12,14 13:19,21 outfalls 11:22 12:13 outs 32:1 over 15:4 22:11 25:24 26:9,10,10,10,11,11 38:9,12,16 39:21 49:7</p>	<p>overflowed 45:4 overnight 10:22 13:5 overs 54:16 own 44:1 Owner/President/CEO 50:22 oxidation 8:15 9:1,23 9:25 10:1,4,24 12:4 12:17 13:21,25 22:7 44:19 45:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">P</p> <hr/> <p>P 54:8,8 paper 23:1 parish 1:12 4:23,25 5:1 6:21 8:8,8 14:10 16:5 16:9,13 17:24 18:8,20 18:21,23 19:14 21:14 21:19 24:7,22 26:8,16 27:4,4 36:11,23 38:15 38:18 39:1,2,7,11 44:20,21,23 50:11 Parishes 1:11 2:15,19 parking 10:22 13:5 part 8:15 10:2 16:13 23:3 29:19 42:14 43:19 participation 53:18 parties 3:20 55:19 Partnership 44:14 parts 32:7 passengers 40:15 past 15:15 Pat 44:10,12 52:17 Patrick 33:18,20 pauses 54:15 penalty 15:11,12,23 pending 18:12 30:16 people 17:8,13 18:10 23:12 35:24 38:7 40:8 40:11,18 45:9 46:23 47:22 48:6,20,25 49:16 perimeter 23:8 period 32:13 53:8 permit 1:1,9 2:11,16,21 3:1,3,10,15,18,19 4:4 4:11 5:16,18 6:10,25 7:16 8:13,21,22 9:3,5 9:15 10:10,10 11:11 11:13,14,24 12:17 13:20 17:6,9,10,20,24 18:4,4,14,19,24 19:15 21:14 23:11 24:15 26:21 27:1,23 28:2,16 30:12,12 34:3,4 35:9 37:4,20,22 38:2,9,11 38:17,20 39:2,5,7 40:3,10,13,23 47:7,23</p>	<p>49:22 50:3,7 53:9 permitted 10:2,13,19 12:6,8,14 26:25 27:20 44:20 person 26:14 personal 36:24 44:1 55:16 persons 14:5 pertain 19:2 pertaining 3:4 pertains 18:22 PER20060002 2:17 Phase 32:11 phonetically 45:25 54:23 photocopies 34:9 phrase 54:23 phrases 54:20 pick 23:7,13 pickup 38:16,21 pick-up 8:17 9:1,24 10:12,16,21 13:4 17:17 18:5 22:4 37:10 37:22 38:25 39:10 47:6 pick-up/transfer 18:25 19:21 picture 24:5 pictures 34:10 46:17 47:1,13 piece 22:25 pilot 41:9,12,16 43:9 52:4 pilots 40:15 45:12 48:22 Piper 39:23 place 50:15 placed 5:5 placement 14:19 plan 11:14,15 plane 48:24 Plant 31:12 played 46:19,20 playing 45:1 pleaded 47:10 please 3:7 37:2 47:23 50:18 point 15:12 30:7 31:20 38:7,14,24 41:21 points 29:3 37:5 poise 26:4,4 policy 36:20 polls 23:2 pollutants 11:20 pollution 11:14 pond 8:15 9:1,23,25 10:1,1,4,8,24 12:4,5 12:17 13:19,21,23,25 22:7,13,18 26:22,24</p>	<p>27:19 44:19 45:4,5 popping 46:10 population 43:19 Porter 5:1 position 3:14 positioned 29:10 possibility 52:8 Post 5:21 potential 11:19 14:25 25:1 pound 51:12 powered 39:19 predominant 51:22 preference 6:5,12 14:12 prepared 55:15 preponderance 30:9 present 14:5 20:4 33:15 presentation 6:11 7:18 34:15 presently 18:7,18 President 35:5 presiding 6:4 pretty 25:15 42:24 43:11 prevailing 51:24 prevented 44:7 previous 16:4 28:22 previously 8:25 prey 51:5,9 primary 9:11 prior 5:11 private 36:20 42:9 probably 24:12,20 30:10,11 problems 16:2 47:19,24 proceeding 54:14 proceedings 54:18 produced 29:2 31:10 producing 29:14 professional 43:9 project 24:8 promote 24:17,23 promotion 24:8 pronouncing 16:24 proper 10:20 15:19 54:17 properly 15:21 37:14 37:15 property 22:9 23:9 24:18 29:6,6 46:23 proposed 8:13 10:9,25 11:5,5,8,9,10 12:23 13:7,12,21 proposes 2:21 12:18 proposing 12:9 prosper 25:6 prosperity 25:1 protect 27:23 48:13 49:13</p>	<p>proven 49:15 provide 3:12,19 6:9 7:6 provided 5:25 7:3 28:25 47:11 Providence 7:21 providing 6:3 provision 6:3 provisions 34:20 proximity 16:1,8 public 1:9 2:10 3:5,8 4:2,2,3,12,20 5:3 6:5 6:8 20:3 30:13 46:6 46:25 49:17 published 4:5 pumping 44:21 punched 25:23 purpose 3:8,23 put 41:22 44:19 48:11 48:12 putting 16:14 puzzling 18:13 p.m 1:13 2:3 4:15 5:10 5:13 53:12,20,22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <hr/> <p>Quality 2:6 question 3:7 18:16 19:10 26:20 questioning 23:10 questions 40:25 quickly 31:2 quite 34:14 43:16 45:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <hr/> <p>R 54:8,8 55:9 radius 6:15,18 20:7 28:7,10 rain 45:5 range 39:25 ranges 39:22 42:23 Ray 14:13,18 19:1,7 read 22:22 real 15:23 43:11,12 52:8 really 15:7 23:10,15 26:1 50:14,15 reason 16:6 40:12 reasonable 3:21 receive 3:9 received 5:10,12 53:14 recent 34:10 recently 30:21 reclassification 37:18 recognize 48:19 record 2:2 7:12 20:11 23:20 29:20 34:8 36:8 36:13 42:2 50:5,19,21 52:24 53:5,19 54:12 recorded 30:22</p>
---	--	---	---	--

<p>records 4:13 43:14 red 46:9,10 48:19 reference 54:22 reflect 2:2 53:19 regaining 41:12 regardless 3:14 Regional 20:21 28:21 29:5 30:20 33:25 36:21 39:12,20 40:17 registered 7:5 registration 7:4,9 Regrettably 30:21 regulate 15:19 47:6 regulated 15:20,21 37:16 regulations 19:2 27:7 49:12 reiterate 45:8 rejecting 30:15 related 3:23 55:19 relates 15:12 relationship 25:13 26:8 26:14,15 27:3 29:16 relationships 25:12 remain 12:22 remarks 53:3 remember 3:8 remind 53:7 removed 3:1 renew 21:13 renewal 38:9 repair 41:18 42:14,20 42:22 repeatedly 26:9,9 report 41:3,3,8 reported 31:3,4 32:11 32:14,20 33:10 55:14 Reporter 1:12 14:15 20:17 49:25 54:9 55:2 55:10 56:3 Reporters 55:22 Reporter's 54:18 represent 7:14 17:3 42:18 44:14 representative 7:16 22:25 representing 7:22 42:8 represents 31:3 request 4:3 29:18 requested 5:5 requesting 12:14 require 37:21 39:2 required 6:2 requirements 13:18 requires 11:14 19:3 37:20 reside 17:2 33:21 residents 25:7 resides 17:4</p>	<p>resolved 37:23 resource 46:1 respectfully 28:1 respond 48:3 responding 47:20 response 4:1 19:24 40:24 responses 21:11 responsible 19:12 restaurant 50:14 retained 5:14 review 4:12 32:3 reviewed 4:22 31:8 reviewing 37:8 revised 5:24 11:15 Richard 36:16,18 right 14:13 23:19 27:21 42:7,15 50:21 51:16 51:24 52:4 risk 40:19 Road 2:18 8:7 17:2 21:7 24:1 44:13 roads 29:10 Robert 28:11,13 Robinson's 39:25 rodents 51:6 Room 4:13 Rory 20:8 rotor 30:5 32:1 51:15 Rouge 4:6,14 5:22 7:23 41:5 48:5,9 49:6 routed 10:8,24 12:3 rule 39:16 rules 27:6 run 26:4 43:1 running 33:6 43:23 runoff 9:7 11:7 13:2,9 runway 19:9 25:4 29:8 38:6 39:15,18 51:22 runways 24:24 run-off 22:10 Rytus 7:19,20 28:23 R'S 54:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">S</p> <hr/> <p>saddens 47:25 safe 9:14 safety 30:19 35:25 39:12 40:5 44:6 same 12:7 13:17,23 26:10,14 49:9 54:17 sanitary 9:9 12:21 saying 46:7 48:1 scaled 29:9 scavenger 51:7 scavenger-type 51:9 scheduled 2:9 school 19:5 24:3 score 27:13</p>	<p>second 6:17 30:18 43:8 Secondly 17:15 18:20 Section 5:25 Security 31:24 see 15:18 20:8 23:2 25:19,23 26:3 34:13 41:9 51:17 52:7 seeking 28:16 seem 15:9 seems 15:11 27:8 29:1 seen 30:4 42:21 sees 18:2 sentiments 35:8 Separation 8:5 Services 5:7 31:13,13 serving 2:6 36:22 session 6:1 48:4 set 6:7 25:10 settle 27:12 Seven 40:6 several 32:7 41:17 Sewage 46:4 share 46:5 sheet 32:6 Sherhan 50:6,7,8,9,20 shin 25:20 shop 8:14,25 9:23 11:1 11:8 13:9 Shorthand 55:22 shortly 37:14 show 24:4 shown 29:7,8 shows 30:25 shutdown 15:13 side 41:16 44:15 49:10 49:11,12 sights 30:21 signed 14:5,11 20:13 28:6 52:13,14,20,23 53:1 significant 11:18 31:21 31:22 32:7 similar 22:23 simply 3:19 Since 37:20 40:21 sir 14:14,16 16:19 20:2 28:5,14 35:1 36:6 41:25 45:17 49:24 50:1,18 52:11,15 site 2:17 8:9 30:19 situated 24:20 situation 14:23 15:6 Six 39:20 skid 41:14 slabs 18:1 slapped 25:14 sludge 22:3 small 10:17 42:25 43:18 44:1 51:5</p>	<p>solid 9:15 some 15:12,23 16:6 17:8 21:11,11 24:6,7 24:8 41:8 somebody's 35:13 someone 15:22 22:24 something 23:12 35:12 44:6 46:17 47:7 sometimes 27:1 sorry 6:4 16:23 25:17 25:22 26:1 33:12 sort 27:6 35:16 36:2 sorts 24:25 Soumaya 5:19 source 43:21 51:4 south 8:18 9:20 24:25 51:24 speak 3:17 6:6 7:5,7 14:9,11,12,20 20:6,12 23:21 24:2,13 28:9 29:21 34:5 46:5 52:13 52:14,21,23,25 speaker 7:4,11 speakers 14:8 speaking 6:12 26:17 spelled 45:24 54:23 spent 15:5,5 24:16,21 35:23 42:15 spill 22:11 spills 22:1 spoken 53:2 spontaneous 54:14 spurred 24:13 square 25:24 squawks 35:18 St 1:11 2:14,19 4:6,25 5:2 8:8 16:5 18:19,21 21:14,19 44:21,22 49:17 stand 48:2 standing 14:22,23 55:21 start 7:25 34:2 46:7 starts 20:9 22:11 45:19 state 31:23 43:20 46:3 46:3 49:13 54:10,11 55:11,21 stated 12:1 22:25 28:14 37:6 statement 28:24 statements 47:12 States 31:15,23,24 32:9 stating 7:12 station 8:17 9:2,24 10:12,17,22 13:4 17:17,18 18:6,25 19:21 20:25 22:4,4 37:10,12,21,22 38:17 38:21 39:1,11 47:5,6</p>	<p>station/transfer 18:6 statistics 29:24 31:17 Statutes 5:24 steering 46:1 still 18:9,12,13 19:15 stipulations 25:9 stomach 25:24 storage 10:23 13:6 storm 2:23,24 9:6 10:21 11:7,13 12:2 13:2,3,8 stream 10:16 Street 1:12 4:14,24 5:2 7:23 33:21 36:19 streets 29:10 stress 13:16 strike 19:11 31:1 32:18 41:3 42:21 43:10 51:2 strikes 31:4,6,14 32:8 32:12,14,21,21,25 34:7,10 40:20 43:15 strong 42:10 struck 32:23 33:11 stuck 51:15 subject 28:15 29:16 submit 36:14 41:2 submitted 5:19 8:20,23 Subra 36:12 sue 19:19,22 sufficient 35:11 summary 12:12 supervision 55:16 support 3:18 6:25 49:21 50:3 supports 23:4 sure 31:8 49:8 surgeries 41:17 sweeping 50:23 synopsis 20:24 system 4:19 18:11 51:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">T</p> <hr/> <p>T 54:8 55:9,9 table 32:20 take 26:2 49:4 taken 1:11 16:6,7,10 31:9 37:25 40:21 41:16 54:11 55:12 takes 25:6 take-offs 39:21 40:16 51:19 talk 25:11 27:3 54:16 talked 24:11 talking 17:6 43:16 51:11 tantamount 35:15 taught 46:8 48:17 team 49:9 Teche 4:6 36:19</p>
---	---	--	--	--

teeth 41:18 tell 24:4 49:7 52:2 telling 49:2,3 temporarily 41:11 tempted 22:21 ten 43:2 51:11 tenant 33:25 tenants 40:6 tended 17:8 testimony 3:22 6:8 thank 14:1,3 16:15,17 20:2 21:2,8 23:16,18 28:3,5,13 34:24 35:1 36:4,6 40:25 41:23,25 44:8 45:15,17 49:18 52:11 53:17 thanks 19:25 33:15 their 3:14 7:12,17 14:5 17:13 19:23 21:13 22:16 29:20 34:14 40:11 46:1,15,16 47:11 48:7,11,14 49:1 themselves 47:7 48:12 thing 26:10 27:6,22 35:17 46:8 things 23:13 34:5 42:24 47:15 48:11 49:14 51:6 think 14:24 15:2,3 16:9 16:18,19 17:12 25:2 25:25 26:6 28:6 35:11 44:4 47:18,19 51:12 thinking 24:11 third 6:20 thirdly 18:23 Thomas 36:7 though 27:8 29:1 thought 54:16 thousand 43:2,2,2 thousands 43:1 three 29:15,19 38:14 through 4:16 9:8,9 11:4 11:8,24 12:5,8 13:14 25:1 30:24 41:7 52:12 54:22 Thursday 2:8 time 2:3 6:6,7 7:15 12:1 15:4 16:15 25:19,23 30:24 32:12 34:24 36:9 42:15 47:18 49:20 51:19 52:20 53:1 timely 47:20 times 3:17 47:10 tip 41:16 tired 48:2 Title 5:9,24 titled 31:14 today 24:3,4 27:14	37:17 today's 21:16 told 23:14 25:17 tonight 7:21 14:20 16:24 17:14 20:4 24:10,14 26:17 30:13 34:6 36:24 42:8 46:14 47:10 tonight's 7:2 total 30:1,8 41:19 53:14 touched 19:1,8 track 43:14 Tracking 2:17 traffic 29:22 35:20 39:22 46:25 trailers 10:23 13:5 training 34:21 transcribed 7:10 55:15 transcript 54:20 55:17 transcription 54:18 transfer 17:17 20:24 22:4 37:12,21 38:16 39:1,10 47:5 transportation 10:18 trash 9:17 23:13,14 treated 2:22 9:9 12:21 13:22,24 25:8 tried 41:12 trucks 10:18,18 true 48:1 55:17 truth 26:22 51:13 try 52:5 trying 22:2 52:6 Tuesday 5:10 53:12 turbine 39:19 two 6:15,18 18:7,9,12 20:7 28:7,10,15,25 29:8 31:11 34:5,10 38:7 type 1:10 2:12 8:3 17:17 18:4,14 19:3,5 49:14 51:8 53:11 T-28's 39:24	use 31:6 44:1 used 10:4,12 22:12 26:23 39:18 54:15 user 43:25	V	valid 26:15 55:21 vehicle 2:24 11:3 13:13 vehicles 11:2 verified 54:22 version 49:8 very 15:14,14 17:12 26:2,3 52:8 via 8:9 viable 16:12 Viator 23:22,23,25 24:1 33:2,3,8 36:7 44:10 44:11,12 52:16,17,17 Vice 35:4 vicinity 16:12 Victims 46:4 Viewing 4:14 violations 26:12 27:18 46:21 vision 41:14 voice 15:25 41:1 48:7 55:14 voicing 49:16 Vortex 50:22 vulture 41:5,7,9	W	waiting 21:21 48:2 waive 36:8 walks 35:17 Walnut 42:7 want 15:25 18:14 20:12 22:20 25:11 26:13 29:3 35:25 46:7 49:10 49:11,12 51:17 52:7 wants 44:18 war 27:11 wash 2:25 11:2 13:13 washing 11:2,3 Washington 41:6 waste 9:9,13,13,15,17 10:13 12:7,21 13:22 13:24 18:10 26:23 38:8,25 39:10 water 1:1,9 2:10,23,24 2:25 3:15 4:4,10 5:16 5:17 6:25 8:21 9:6,9 10:21 11:3,7,10,12,13 12:2,7,21 13:2,3,8,14 13:22,24 21:24 22:3,9 22:10 26:23 27:19 37:4 38:2,11,20 39:5 40:3,10 44:19,22 45:6 49:22 53:8	way 10:23 13:6 15:15 15:17,19 22:16 27:13 34:22 51:4 weather 17:22 website 4:20 well 9:1 15:4 19:5 25:25 28:14 29:25 43:7 51:12 went 24:3,6 37:10 41:7 46:16 were 5:4 26:2 31:17 47:15 48:22 Wesley 20:14,15,19,20 we'll 48:5 we're 12:9,24,25 17:7 21:21 23:14 we've 35:23 41:21 43:16 wheelers 23:7 wildlife 30:19 31:13,14 40:20 43:15 Wilma 36:12 wind 41:11 winds 51:24 windshield 41:7,10 wing 29:12 32:1 wish 34:13 wonder 23:15 27:1 wondering 21:8 wood 10:23 13:6 words 54:19,21 work 6:18 27:25 28:9 28:14 50:11 working 24:22 42:16 workload 52:3 worried 49:1 wouldn't 24:13 26:2 writing 47:12 48:11 55:15 written 3:25 5:17 wrong 45:3 46:19 www.deq.louisiana.gov 4:21	Z	zero 32:19 zones 39:14 zoning 18:21 21:20,21	\$	\$1.5 41:19 \$150 40:1 \$25,000 40:1 \$250 34:19	#	#99098 56:4	0	001 2:25 9:8 10:7 12:8 12:10,16 13:1,19,25 002 9:10 12:20 003 2:22 10:9,25 12:5 12:23 13:1,21 004 2:23 11:9 13:7,14	I	1 13:14 21:7 36:15 1st 9:4 10 33:6 10,000 39:18 10-5 30:23 100,000 39:21 40:16 102 33:21 104 2:24 11:6 13:11 36:19 11 1:3 2:8 11th 1:13 12 50:25 12:30 5:10,13 53:12 1201 7:23 127 4:13 128,148 30:3 140 50:9 150 51:25 16 5:11,13 53:13 193 40:22 1990 32:9,13,16 33:13 40:21	2	2-18-94 30:25 20 22:13 20% 31:5 200 51:25 2004 6:1 9:4 21:15 29:25 30:2 2005 29:25 30:2,24 32:10,13,16 33:13 41:3 2006 4:7,9 5:7 8:20 29:23,25 30:3 37:7 2007 1:3,13 2:8 5:11,13
--	--	--	----------	---	----------	--	--	----------	--	-----------	---	----------	-------------	----------	--	----------	---	----------	---

<p>21:17 27:17 53:13 2007701002 29:1 2009 9:5 201 5:1 2017 5:25 206 41:4 24 17:22</p>	<p style="text-align: center;"><u>9</u></p> <p>911 46:7 48:16 94,252 30:2</p>			
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>3</u></p> <p>3,200 19:9 38:5 3,300 39:14 30 5:25 6:9 42:12 43:8 30th 41:3 300 1:12 30245 2:16 31 9:18 31st 9:5 3113.B.1 5:9 33 5:9 33:3105.B.2 3:3 3819 24:1</p>				
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>4</u></p> <p>4 5:7 4:30 4:15 40 23:2 4105 42:6 4313 5:22 445 4:23</p>				
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>5</u></p> <p>5th 4:13 37:7 500 32:18 34:12 41:5 5502 44:12 5718 21:6</p>				
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>6</u></p> <p>6 4:7 6:00 1:13 2:3 602 4:13 614 2:18 8:6 6211 17:2 68,826 30:2</p>				
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>7</u></p> <p>7 4:9 7:10 53:19,22 70% 30:5 700 40:7 70563 33:22 70802 7:24 70821-4313 5:23 777's 39:22</p>				
<p style="text-align: center;"><u>8</u></p> <p>8:00 4:15 80% 31:4 85% 30:6 88 8:10</p>				